
 
 

Public Hearing 

 
 

 
 

Public Hearing 
to be held at 

City of Penticton Council Chambers 
171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 

 
Tuesday, April 4, 2017 

at 6:00 p.m.  
 
1.   Mayor Calls Public Hearing to Order for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-14” 1-11 
 
CO  Reads Opening Statement and Introduction of Bylaws 

 
“Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-14”  
 
Purpose: To amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 as follows: 
 
 1) Amend the definition of Vacation Rental, 2) Amend section 7.6.1 Vacation 

Rentals Ownership and 3) Amend section 7.6.3 Operation of Vacation Rental. 
 

Notice: The Public Hearing was advertised in the Penticton Western Newspaper on 
Friday, March 24, 2017 and Wednesday, March 29, 2017 (pursuant to the 
Local Government Act). 

 
CO Correspondence received regarding the Zoning Bylaw attached (as of noon Wednesday, 

March 29, 2017) 
 
Mayor Requests the Director of Development Services describe the proposed bylaw 
 
Mayor Invitation to applicant for comment or elaboration on the application  
 
Mayor Invites those in attendance to present their views 
 
Mayor Invites Council members to ask questions 
 
Mayor Invites applicants to respond to questions and those in attendance may provide new  
 additional information 
 
PUBLIC HEARING for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-14” is terminated and no new information can be 
received on this matter.   

 
 

  



Public Hearing of April 4, 2017  Page 2 of 7 
    

 

2.   Mayor Calls Public Hearing to Order for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19” 12-28 
 
CO  Reads Opening Statement and Introduction of Bylaws 

 
“Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19” (769/777 Ontario Street) 

 
 
Purpose: To amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 as follows: 
 

1)  Rezone Lot 23, District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 
3578, located at 769 Ontario Street; and Rezone Lot 2, District Lot 249 
Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 4847, located at 777 Ontario Street 
from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane).  2)  Add 
Section 10.6.4.5: “In the case of Lot 23, District Lot 249 Similkameen Division 
Yale District, Plan 3578, located at 769 Ontario Street and Lot 2, District Lot 
249, Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 4847, located at 777 Ontario 
Street, two dwelling units are permitted with vehicular access from the 
street.” 

 
The applicant has applied for the above zoning amendments to facilitate the 
subdivision of each lot into two lots (for a total of four lots) with the intent of 
constructing two dwelling units on each lot. 

 
Notice: The Public Hearing was advertised in the Penticton Western Newspaper on 

Friday, March 24, 2017 and Wednesday, March 29, 2017 (pursuant to the 
Local Government Act). 

 
CO No Correspondence received regarding the Zoning Amendment (as of noon Wednesday, 

March 29, 2017) 
 
Mayor Requests the Director of Development Services describe the proposed amendments 
 
Mayor Invitation to applicant for comment or elaboration on the application  
 
Mayor Invites those in attendance to present their views 
 
Mayor Invites Council members to ask questions 
 
Mayor Invites applicants to respond to questions and those in attendance may provide new  
 additional information 
 

PUBLIC HEARING for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19” is terminated and no new 
information can be received on this matter. 

 
 
 
  



Public Hearing of April 4, 2017  Page 3 of 7 
    

 

3.   Mayor Calls Public Hearing to Order for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20” 29-53 
 
CO  Reads Opening Statement and Introduction of Bylaws 

 
“Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20” (865 Railway Street & 708 Revelstoke Ave) 
 
Purpose: To amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot 57, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly 
Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049, located at 708 Revelstoke Avenue, and 
Rezone Lot 56, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly 
Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049, Except Plan 36620, located at 865 Railway 
Street from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane). 

 
The applicant is proposing to construct a front-to-back duplex on each lot. 
 

Notice: The Public Hearing was advertised in the Penticton Western Newspaper on 
Friday, March 24, 2017 and Wednesday, March 29, 2017 (pursuant to the 
Local Government Act). 

 
CO No Correspondence received regarding the Zoning Amendment (as of noon Wednesday, 

March 29, 2017) 
 
Mayor Requests the Director of Development Services describe the proposed amendments 
 
Mayor Invitation to applicant for comment or elaboration on the application  
 
Mayor Invites those in attendance to present their views 
 
Mayor Invites Council members to ask questions 
 
Mayor Invites applicants to respond to questions and those in attendance may provide new  
 additional information 
 

PUBLIC HEARING for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20” is terminated and no new 
information can be received on this matter. 

 
 
  



Public Hearing of April 4, 2017  Page 4 of 7 
    

 

4.   Mayor Calls Public Hearing to Order for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21” 54-74 
 
CO  Reads Opening Statement and Introduction of Bylaws 

 
“Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21” (634 Westminster Ave W & 201 Maple Street) 
 
Purpose: To amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot 1, Block 125, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale 
(Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1175, Except Plan B5606 located at 201 
Maple Street and That Part of Lot 1, Block 125 shown on Plan B5606, District 
Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen (Formerly Yale Lytton) Division Yale District, Plan 
1175 located at 634 Westminster Avenue West, from R2 (Small Lot 
Residential) to RM3 (Medium Density Multiple Housing).  

 
The developer is proposing to construct a three (3) storey apartment 
building with surface parking. 
 

Notice: The Public Hearing was advertised in the Penticton Western Newspaper on 
Friday, March 24, 2017 and Wednesday, March 29, 2017 (pursuant to the 
Local Government Act). 

 
CO Correspondence received regarding the Zoning Amendment attached (as of noon 

Wednesday, March 29, 2017) 
 
Mayor Requests the Director of Development Services describe the proposed amendments 
 
Mayor Invitation to applicant for comment or elaboration on the application  
 
Mayor Invites those in attendance to present their views 
 
Mayor Invites Council members to ask questions 
 
Mayor Invites applicants to respond to questions and those in attendance may provide new  
 additional information 
 

PUBLIC HEARING for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21” is terminated and no new 
information can be received on this matter. 
 
 

 
  



Public Hearing of April 4, 2017  Page 5 of 7 
    

 

5.   Mayor Calls Public Hearing to Order for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-22” 75-84 
 
CO  Reads Opening Statement and Introduction of Bylaws 

 
“Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-22” (230 Brunswick Street) 
 
Purpose: To amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 as follows: 
 

Add Section 11.6.4.2: “In the case of Lot 14, District Lot 4, Group 7, 
Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 871, located at 
230 Brunswick Street, indoor millwork shall be permitted.” 

 
The applicant is proposing to operate a custom woodworking shop. 

 
Notice: The Public Hearing was advertised in the Penticton Western Newspaper on 

Friday, March 24, 2017 and Wednesday, March 29, 2017 (pursuant to the 
Local Government Act). 

 
CO No Correspondence received regarding the Zoning Amendment (as of noon Wednesday, 

March 29, 2017) 
 
Mayor Requests the Director of Development Services describe the proposed amendments 
 
Mayor Invitation to applicant for comment or elaboration on the application  
 
Mayor Invites those in attendance to present their views 
 
Mayor Invites Council members to ask questions 
 
Mayor Invites applicants to respond to questions and those in attendance may provide new  
 additional information 
 

PUBLIC HEARING for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-22” is terminated and no new 
information can be received on this matter. 
 

 
  



Public Hearing of April 4, 2017  Page 6 of 7 
    

 

6.   Mayor Calls Public Hearing to Order for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-23” 85-94 
 
CO  Reads Opening Statement and Introduction of Bylaws 

 
“Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-23” (453 Winnipeg Street & 232 Wade Avenue W) 
 
Purpose: To amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 as follows: 
 

Add 10.9.5 Site Specific Provisions:  .1  In the case of Lot A, District Lot 4, 
Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District, Plan 
KAP77551, located at 453 Winnipeg Street, the use ‘office’ shall be permitted 
and .2  In the case of Lot E, District Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen (Formerly 
Yale Lytton) Division Yale  District, Plan 502, Except Plan B4474, located at 
232 Wade Avenue, the use ‘parking’ shall be permitted. 

 
BC Housing is proposing to renovate the Leisure Centre (453 Winnipeg St) 
and move their regional office to this location.  They are also proposing to 
relocate the community garden at 232 Wade Ave W to another location on 
the campus and convert the lot to parking for their staff and residents of the 
Tower Apartments. 
 

Notice: The Public Hearing was advertised in the Penticton Western Newspaper on 
Friday, March 24, 2017 and Wednesday, March 29, 2017 (pursuant to the 
Local Government Act). 

 
CO No Correspondence received regarding the Zoning Amendment (as of noon Wednesday, 

March 29, 2017) 
 
Mayor Requests the Director of Development Services describe the proposed amendments 
 
Mayor Invitation to applicant for comment or elaboration on the application  
 
Mayor Invites those in attendance to present their views 
 
Mayor Invites Council members to ask questions 
 
Mayor Invites applicants to respond to questions and those in attendance may provide new  
 additional information 
 

PUBLIC HEARING for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-23” is terminated and no new 
information can be received on this matter. 
 
 

 
  



Public Hearing of April 4, 2017  Page 7 of 7 
    

 

 
7.   Mayor Calls Public Hearing to Order for “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw  
 No. 2017-24”          95-118 
 
CO  Reads Opening Statement and Introduction of Bylaws 

 
“Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-24” (135 Front Street) 
 
Purpose: To amend OCP Bylaw 2002-20 as follows: 
 

Amend Section 2.1.2 The Downtown and Urban Villages to include “A five 
storey high density format would be an option in the Downtown Commercial 
(DC) designated area of 135 Front Street.” 
 
The developer is proposing to construct a five (5) storey mixed-use building 
consisting of commercial and residential units. 

 
Notice: The Public Hearing was advertised in the Penticton Western Newspaper on 

Friday, March 24, 2017 and Wednesday, March 29, 2017 (pursuant to the 
Local Government Act). 

 
CO Correspondence received regarding the Zoning Amendment attached (as of noon 

Wednesday, March 29, 2017) 
 
Mayor Requests the Director of Development Services describe the proposed amendments 
 
Mayor Invitation to applicant for comment or elaboration on the application  
 
Mayor Invites those in attendance to present their views 
 
Mayor Invites Council members to ask questions 
 
Mayor Invites applicants to respond to questions and those in attendance may provide new  
 additional information 
 

PUBLIC HEARING for “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-24” is terminated 
and no new information can be received on this matter. 
 



Regular Council Meeting 
held at City of Penticton Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
 

Tuesday, March 21, 2017  
at 1:00 p.m. 

 

Resolutions 
 

    
Minutes of March 21, 2017 Regular Council    
 

 
7.8 Short Term Rental Program 

 
197/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

That Council change the definition of Home Stay Rental  to less than 30 days.  
DEFEATED 

Mayor Jakubeit, Councillors Sayeed, Watt, Sentes, Martin, Opposed 
 

198/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-14” and forward to 
the April 4, 2017 Public Hearing; 
 
THAT Council give first, second as amended and third reading to “Business Licence 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-15” and provide an opportunity for persons who consider they 
are affected by the bylaw to make representation to Council at the April 4, 2017 meeting; 
 
THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2017-16”;  
 
THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Bylaw Enforcement Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2017-17”; 
 
AND THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Municipal Ticketing Information 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-18”. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  
  

- 1 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 
 

Date: March 21, 2017       File No:    4300-01 
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Anthony Haddad, Director, Development Services 
 
Subject: Short Term Rental Program  
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-14” and forward to the April 4, 2017 Public 
Hearing; 
 
THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Business Licence Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-15” and provide 
an opportunity for persons who consider they are affected by the bylaw to make representation to Council at the 
April 4, 2017 meeting; 
 
THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-16”;  
 
THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Bylaw Enforcement Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-17”; 
 
AND THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Municipal Ticketing Information Amendment Bylaw No. 
2017-18”. 
 
Strategic priority objective 

Effective management of vacation rental businesses ensures that Penticton is a livable, thriving, safe and 
sustainable city. 

Vacation rentals contribute to the local economy in a variety of ways, allowing local residents and 
homeowners the ability to increase their yearly income and to provide accommodation to the visiting 
public.  

Background 

On February 7, 2017, Council endorsed a staff report proposing amendments to various municipal bylaws in 
an effort to better regulate the short term rental industry in Penticton. 

Council supported the proposed amendments as outlined below (Resolution 40/2017): 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
 
THAT Council support the proposed amendments to the Zoning, Business Licence, 
Fees and Charges, and Enforcement Bylaws in regard to the regulations and licensing of 
vacation rentals in Penticton as outlined in the Short Term Rental Program report dated 
February 7, 2017; 

- 2 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 7 

 
AND THAT Council direct staff to bring back bylaw amendment s in support of the proposed 
regulatory changes for the March 7, 2017 regular meeting of Council; 
 
AND THAT Council direct staff to begin efforts to bring greater compliance to the vacation 
rental industry. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Council were supportive of the proposed amendments with one change being requested around increasing 
the maximum occupancy of a vacation rental from 5 to a total of 6, to better reflect the requirement around 
having a maximum of 2 persons per bedroom.  Staff have included this request in the proposed 
amendments. 
 

Proposal 

The proposed amendments to support the direction of Council, from February 7, 2017, are provided in 
Attachments A-E.  As part of the implementation of the Short Term Rental changes, staff proposes to engage 
in an education campaign via newspaper, website and social media to promote the revamped Vacation 
Rental Program including a neighbour complaint program.  

Discussion at Council also involved ensuing that staff were prepared to implement that changes and ensue 
that the process to gain compliance in the community was simple for those wishing to comply.  Staff will be 
preparing the appropriate information for the community and will present to Council as part of the April 4th 
Council meeting. 

Analysis  

Staff believe that the proposed recommendations will help meet the needs of visitors to Penticton and 
provide opportunities for hosts in the following ways: 

• by diversifying the accommodation offerings in the community; 
• ensuring the safety and improving the visitor experience of those options; 
• allowing Penticton residents to run small businesses;   
• creating a more level playing field for traditional Bed & Breakfast and Hotel operators.  

The proposed changes were reviewed in conjunction with the Economic Development, Planning, and Bylaw 
Services departments, and through support of resourcing to assist with administration of the proposed 
changes, staff are confident that this proposal will move towards successful implementation. 

Staff are also investigating other technologies and services provides such as ‘Host Compliance’ that can 
provide additional services and resources for dealing with this issue and if deemed appropriate will bring 
back for Council review and consideration as we move forward. 

Alternate recommendations 

1. THAT Council direct staff to make no amendments to the current bylaws, fees or charges. 
 

- 3 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 7 

2. That Council direct staff to make recommendations with different regulations for vacation rentals that 
Council feels are appropriate. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Bylaw Amendments  

Attachment B – Business Licence Bylaw Amendments  

Attachment C – Fees & Charges Bylaw Amendments 

Attachment D – Enforcement Bylaw Amendments  

Attachment E -      Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-14 
- Business Licence Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-15 
- Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-16 
- Bylaw Notice Enforcement Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-17 
- Municipal Ticket Information Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-18 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Anthony Haddad 
Director, Development Services 
 

Approvals 

Director CAO 

AH 
 

PW 
 

 

  

- 4 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 7 

Attachment A 
Zoning Bylaw Amendments 

 
Changes to Zoning Bylaw 2017-08:  

 
a. Amend Section 3.2, amending the definition of ‘vacation rental’:  

From:  

Vacation Rental means the rental of a dwelling unit to tourists or the vacationing public for a 
period of one month or less 

To:  

Vacation Rental means the rental of a dwelling unit to the vacationing public for a period of 
one month or less. Rentals of a dwelling unit for less than 14 days in a calendar year are not 
considered vacation rentals.  

b. Amend Section 7.6.1 ownership 
 
From:  
 
.2 A residential dwelling unit subject to this section of the Bylaw shall only be rented out by 
an owner of the property in question. A tenant may not sublet a property under this section. 
 
.3 If the registered owner of the subject dwelling ceases to be the owner, the use may not be 
continued by a subsequent owner without a reapplication for a new license under the 
Business License Bylaw 
 
To: 
 
.2 A residential dwelling unit subject to this section of the Bylaw shall only be rented out by 
the owner of the property in question, or by a tenant with the owner’s permission  
 
.3 Remove 
 

c. Amend Section 7.6.3.2:  
 
From:  
 
A maximum of two (2) persons per bedroom, or a group of not more than five (5) persons is 
permitted per vacation rental property, whichever is less  
 
To:  
  
A maximum of two 2 persons per bedroom is permitted per vacation rental dwelling unit. 
 

 
 

 

- 5 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 7 

Attachment B 

Business Licence Bylaw Amendments 
 
Changes to Business Licence Bylaw 2012-5020: 
 

a. To reclassify short term rental licensing classifications based on possible impact to adjacent 
neighbours and the community at large: 

 
Section 1.0 Definitions 
Add the following definition terms; 
 

Home Stay Rental – meaning a short term rental of less than 14 days within a year or 
where there is no financial transaction such as a home exchange.  No licensing 
registration would be required; however the maximum number of rental guests would 
be restricted to 6 overnight occupants. 
 
Vacation Rental (Minor)– meaning a vacation rental operation of less than 30 rental 
days within a year and the owner is a principal resident during guest use.  Maximum 
rental accommodation would be 2 persons per bedroom with a maximum of 6 guests. 
This would involve the rental of room(s), legal secondary suite or carriage home. 
 
Vacation Rental (Major) – meaning a vacation rental operation of more than 30 rental 
days within a year or with a non-resident owner during guest use.  Maximum rental 
accommodation would be 2 persons per bedroom with a maximum of 6 guests. This 
would involve the rental of any dwelling unit or single family dwelling.  
 
Vacation Rental (Major High Occupant) – meaning a major vacation rental use with 
more than 5 guests for a minor or major vacation rental. This would require additional 
staff review time and public consultation with the adjacent neighbouring properties.  
 

14.0 Regulations 
Create new sub-section for Vacation Rental requirements:  

14.2 Vacation Rentals 

14.2.1 Except for multi-family buildings, only one Vacation Rental operation is permissible per  
Real property. 
 

14.2.2 Minor and Major vacation rentals require the following:  

a. Posting of contact numbers  and maximum overnight occupant load in a visible location 
inside the rental; 

b. Contact numbers for responsible party to be listed on the City of Penticton Business 
Directory; 

c. Require all advertising to include the City of Penticton Business Licence number; 
d. Require notification to all adjacent residents of the vacation rental business for high 

occupant vacation rental (City to do neighbourhood notification); and, 
e. Require a “responsible host” review to consider renewals based on repeated Bylaw 

infractions or nuisance enforcement files.   

- 6 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 7 

Attachment C 
Fees & Charges Bylaw Amendments 

 
2. Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 2014-07 – Appendix 5  

 
a. Reclassify the Annual Business Licensing fee. 

 

Category Fee Comments 
Vacation Rental & Bed and 
Breakfast 

Base Fee 
plus 
Tourism 
Fee 

 

Bed and Breakfast $175 Annual Fee (renewal – could include audit safety 
inspection). 

Vacation Rental Application  
Fee  
(*waived until May 31, 2017)  

$75 First year fee for set up administration and site safety 
inspections per unit. (Home Stay exempt) 

Vacation Rental (Home Stay) NA  
Vacation Rental (Minor) $100 Annual Fee (renewal – could include audit safety 

inspection) per unit 
Vacation Rental (Major) $150 Annual Fee (renewal – could include audit safety 

inspection) per unit 
Vacation Rental (Major with 
high occupant) 

$250 + 
$250 

Annual Fee (renewal – could include audit safety 
inspection) per unit plus 
First year public notification fee. 

 
b. Adjust the existing Tourism Fee to ensure the vacation rental owners contribute to the 

marketing of the area.  The tourism fee would be variable: 
 

Category Fee 
Bed and Breakfast $200 Annual tourism fee  
Vacation Rental (Home Stay) NA  
Vacation Rental (Minor) $100 Annual tourism fee per unit 
Vacation Rental (Major) $200 Annual tourism fee per unit 
Vacation Rental (Major with 
high occupant) 

$300 Annual tourism fee per unit 

 

 

  

- 7 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 7 

Attachment D 
Bylaw Notice of Enforcement Bylaw & MTI Bylaw Amendments 

 

 

Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No.2012-5037 

Add new fine to Appendix 4 

Description 
of 

Offence 

Bylaw 
Section 

Column A1 
Fine 

Column A2 
Early Payment 

Penalty 

Column A3 
Late Payment 

Penalty 

Column A4 
Compliance 
Agreement 
Available 

operating or 
advertising a 
vacation 
rental without 
a license 

5.2 $250.00 $225.00 $275.00 Yes 

 

Municipal Ticketing Information Bylaw No. 2012-5021:  

Schedule A for Bylaw 5021 

Delete and Replace item 4 from: 

 Business Licence Bylaw No. 2010-90 

To 

Business Licence Bylaw No. 2012-5020 

Schedule B4 to Bylaw 5021 

 Delete and replace Bylaw reference from: 

 BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW NO. 2010-90 

 TO 

 BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW NO. 2012-5020 

Schedule B7 to Bylaw 5021 

 Increase fine from $100.00 to $500.00  

ZONING BYLAW 2011-23 SECTION FINE 
10. Operating a Vacation Rental on 
Residential Property contrary to the 
Zoning Bylaw. 

8.9 $500.00 

 

 

- 8 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-14  Page 1 of 2 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-14 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-14”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 2.1 Amend section 3.2 Definitions and replace with the following: 
 

VACATION RENTAL means the rental of a dwelling unit to the vacationing public for a period of 
one month or less.  Rentals of a dwelling unit for less than 14 days in a calendar year are not 
considered vacation rentals. 

 
 2.2 Amend section 7.6.1 Vacation Rentals Ownership and replace with the following: 

 
.2  A residential dwelling unit subject to this section of the Bylaw shall only be rented out by the 
owner of the property in question, or by a tenant with the owner’s permission. 
 
.3  Delete in its entirety. 

 
2.3 Amend section 7.6.3 Operation of Vacation Rental and replace with the following: 

 
.2  A maximum of two (2) persons per bedroom is permitted per vacation rental dwelling unit. 

 
 
 
READ A FIRST time this 21 day of March, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 4 day of April, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

 day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
 

- 9 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-14  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the __ day of ____, 2017 and the __ day of ____, 2017 in the Penticton 
Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 
 
 

 
      

 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 
 
 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

Approved pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the Transportation Act 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
____________________________________ 
for Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 

- 10 -



- 11 -



Regular Council Meeting 
held at City of Penticton Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
 

Tuesday, March 21, 2017  
at 1:00 p.m. 

 

Resolutions 
 

    
Minutes of March 21, 2017 Regular Council    
 

 
  
  

 
 

12.5 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19 
 Re:  769/777 Ontario Street 

 
211/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19,” a bylaw to Rezone Lot 23 District Lot 249 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 3578, located at 769 Ontario Street and to Rezone Lot 
2 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 4847, located at 777 Ontario Street 
from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane), and to add Section 10.6.4.5: 
“In the case of Lot 23 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 3578, located at 
769 Ontario Street and Lot 2 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 4847, 
located at 777 Ontario Street, two dwelling units are permitted with vehicular access from 
the street,”  be given first reading and forwarded to the April 4, 2017 Public Hearing. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
  

- 12 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: March 21, 2017                           File No:  RZ PL2017-7848 
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer           
From: Randy Houle, Planner 1                    
Address:  769/777 Ontario Street 
 
Subject: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19  
  
Staff Recommendation 

Zoning Amendment 

THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19,” a bylaw to Rezone Lot 23 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division 
Yale District Plan 3578, located at 769 Ontario Street and to Rezone Lot 2 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division 
Yale District Plan 4847, located at 777 Ontario Street from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: 
Lane), and to add Section 10.6.4.5: “In the case of Lot 23 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 
3578, located at 769 Ontario Street and Lot 2 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 4847, 
located at 777 Ontario Street, two dwelling units are permitted with vehicular access from the street,”  be given 
first reading and forwarded to the April 4, 2017 Public Hearing. 

Strategic priority objective 

Livable: by creating a great place to live with appropriate housing for all. 

Background 

The subject properties (Attachment ‘A’) are zoned R2 (Small Lot Residential) and are designated by the City’s 
Official Community Plan as MR (Medium Density Residential). Photos of the site are included as Attachment 
‘D’. Each of the subject properties are approximately 900m2 (9700ft2) in area. A Single Family Dwelling 
occupies each lot, which will be demolished. The surrounding properties are primarily zoned RD1 (Duplex 
Housing), RM2 (Multiple Family Low Density), R2 (Small Lot Residential) and P2 (Parks and Recreation). 
Surrounding properties are designated by the OCP as MR (Medium Density Residential) and PR (Parks and 
Recreation).   

The property is located within the General Multiple Family Development Permit area. A development permit 
application will follow the rezoning application.  

Proposal 

The applicant is requesting that the subject properties (769 & 777 Ontario Street) be rezoned from R2 (Small 
Lot Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane). 

- 13 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 2 of 14 

The rezoning will facilitate the subdivision of each lot into two lots for a total of four. More specifically, the 
applicant is proposing to construct two single family dwellings on each of the two lots that will be created 
from the subdivision of 769 Ontario Street. Each unit will have a garage and living area on the main floor and 
three bedrooms on the second floor. Since two single family dwellings are not a permitted use in the current 
R2 zone, a rezoning to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) with a site specific provision allowing for two dwelling 
units with vehicular access from the street is required. At this time, the applicant is unsure of the exact 
design for 777 Ontario Street, but still wishes to proceed with the rezoning to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) 
and subdivision into two lots. 

Additionally, the proposed amendment will add:  Section 10.6.4.5: “In the case of Lot 23 District Lot 249 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 3578, located at 769 Ontario Street and Lot 2 District Lot 249 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 4847, located at 777 Ontario Street, two dwelling units are permitted 
with vehicular access from the street.” 

Financial implication 

NA 

Technical Review 

This application was forwarded to the City’s Technical Planning Committee and reviewed by the Engineering 
and Public Works Departments. Electrical requirements, water and sewer connections, building 
requirements and street frontage improvements were discussed and will be addressed at the building 
permit stage.  If the request for the zoning amendment permit is supported, BC Building Code and City 
bylaw provisions, such as height restrictions, will apply. 

Previous applications in this area raised concerns over the increased traffic in the lane. This particular 
development will have vehicles access from both the street and the lane. The proposed single family homes 
with vehicle access from the lane will have single car garages with driveway space for 2 additional vehicles. 
Although this development may increase traffic on the lane, staff suggest that speed limit and no parking 
signs be placed in the lane to help to decrease the problems.  

Ontario Street is currently classified as an Urban Local Residential road, detail S-R2 in the Subdivision and 
Development Bylaw 2004-81.  The standard detail indicates a 16m right of way with dedicated sidewalk on 
one side of the roadway.  Contributions have been collected from three previous developments along 
Ontario Street as part an initiative to add sidewalk to one side of the road so that in the future Ontario Street 
will conform to its intended road classification. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant is 
required to submit a bond for frontage improvements for both 769 and 777 Ontario Street.  

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the rezoning 
application: 
 

 

- 14 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 3 of 14 

Item 
Requirement of 

RD2 Zone 
769 Ontario St. 

LOT B 
769 Ontario St. 

LOT A 

Maximum Lot Coverage: 
Maximum Density: 

40% 
0.95 FAR 

39% 
0.69 FAR 

39% 
0.69 FAR 

Vehicle Parking: 1 per unit 1 per unit 1 per unit 
Required Setbacks 
Front yard (East): 
Rear yard (West): 
Interior yard (North): 
Interior yard (South): 

 

4.5m 
6.0m 
1.5m 
1.5m   

 

4.5m  
6.0m  

1.52m  
1.54m  

 

4.5m  
6.0m  

1.54m  
1.52m  

Maximum Building Height: 10.5m 6.78m 6.78m 

Other Information: 
Subject property is located within the General Multiple Family 
Development Permit Area. 

 
Analysis 
 
Zoning Amendment 
 
Support “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19”   
 
The site is situated in an area experiencing significant densification. The OCP designation for this site is 
Medium Density Residential (MR), which supports the proposed development. Staff consider that the zoning 
amendment to allow for two dwelling units represents best use of the land for the following reasons: 

• The proposal is consistent with the OCP’s view that infill residential development is an appropriate 
method of maximizing the use of land and increasing housing choices for Penticton residents. 

• The OCP encourages densification in areas where existing services can accommodate higher 
densities, which is the case here. 

• The proximity to the lake, downtown and nearby services encourages more walking and active forms 
of transportation. 

• Constructing two separate single family homes instead of a duplex on each property creates 
additional private yard space in between the buildings, sheltered from the street and lane.  
 

Staff consider that the design is suitable and consistent with the redevelopment trends in the area. The 
location of the site and characteristics of the surrounding neighbourhood make it appropriate for residential 
densification. Given the above, staff recommends that Council support “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 
2017-19” and forward the application to the April 4th, 2017 Public Hearing for comments from the public. 

Deny/Refer Zoning Amendment 

Council may consider that the proposed amendment is not suitable for this site. If this is the case, Council 
should deny the bylaw amendment. Alternatively, Council may wish to refer the matter back to staff to work 
with the applicant with any direction that Council considers appropriate.  

- 15 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 4 of 14 

Alternate Recommendations 

1. THAT Council denies first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19”  
2. THAT Council refers the application “RZ PL2017-7848” back to staff with instructions that Council 

feels are warranted.  

Attachments 

Attachment A:       Subject Property Location Map 
Attachment B : Zoning Map 
Attachment C: OCP Map 
Attachment D:   Images of Subject Property  
Attachment E: Site Plan (769 Ontario Street) 
Attachment F: Elevations 
Attachment G: Landscape Plan 
Attachment H: Letter of Intent 
Attachment I:  “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19” 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Randy Houle 
Planner 1 

Approvals 

 

DDS 
 

AH 

CAO 
 

PW 

  
 

- 16 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 5 of 14 

 Attachment ‘A’ – Subject Property Location Map 

 

Figure 1: Subject Property Location Map 

- 17 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 6 of 14 

Attachment ‘B’ – Zoning Map 

 

Figure 2: Zoning Map 

 

- 18 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 7 of 14 

Attachment ‘C’- OCP Map 

 

Figure 3: OCP Map 

- 19 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 8 of 14 

Attachment ‘D’ – Images of Subject Property 

 

Figure 4: East View of 769 Ontario Street 

 

Figure 5: West View of 769 Ontario Street (from Lane) 

- 20 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 9 of 14 

 

 

Figure 6: East View of 777 Ontario Street  

 

Figure 7: West View of 777 Ontario Street (from Lane) 

- 21 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 10 of 14 

Attachment ‘E’ - Site Plan (769 Ontario Street) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 8: Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 22 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 11 of 14 

Attachment ‘F’ - Elevations 

 

                     Figure 9: Side Elevation 

 

                  

                  Figure 10: Side Elevation 

 

 

 

- 23 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 12 of 14 

 

 

Figure 11: End Elevation 

 

Figure 12: End Elevation 

 

- 24 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 13 of 14 

Attachment ‘G’ – Landscape Plan 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 13: Landscape Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 25 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7848  Page 14 of 14 

Attachment ‘H’- Letter of Intent 

 

Figure 14: Letter of Intent 

 

 

 

 

- 26 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-19 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Rezone Lot 23, District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 3578, located at 769 
Ontario Street; and 
Rezone Lot 2, District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 4847, located at 777 
Ontario Street from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) 

 
2.2 Add Section 10.6.4.5: “In the case of Lot 23, District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District, 

Plan 3578, located at 769 Ontario Street and Lot 2, District Lot 249, Similkameen Division Yale 
District Plan 4847, located at 777 Ontario Street, two dwelling units are permitted with vehicular 
access from the street.” 

 
2.3 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 21 day of March, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 4 day of April, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 24 day of March, 2017 and the 29 day of March, 2017 in the 
Penticton Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 

      
 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 

 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

- 27 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’ 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-19 
 

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________ 

491-418

467-410

6-461

467-418

455

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
8

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
8

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
8

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
8

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
8

 
P
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
8

 
P
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
8

 
P
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
8

 
P
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
8

 
P
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
8

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

48474847484748474847

EPP 
5129

3
EPP 

5129
3

EPP 
5129

3
EPP 

5129
3

EPP 
5129

3

44234423442344234423

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

35783578357835783578

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

35783578357835783578

R.P.
  31

569

R.P.
  31

569

R.P.
  31

569

R.P.
  31

569

R.P.
  31

569
 

  
 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 

R.P.
 35

R.P.
 35

R.P.
 35R.P.
 35

R.P.
 35

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

3973
4

3973
4

3973
43973
4

3973
4

R
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
.
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
.
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
.
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
.
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     

     

     

R
.
P
.
 
3
5
7
8

R
.
P
.
 
3
5
7
8

R
.
P
.
 
3
5
7
8

R
.
P
.
 
3
5
7
8

R
.
P
.
 
3
5
7
8

KAP 
7961

4
KAP 

7961
4

KAP 
7961

4
KAP 

7961
4

KAP 
7961

4

REMREMREMREMREM

REMREMREMREMREM

REMREMREMREMREM

     

    
    
    
    
    

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

42244224422442244224R.P.
 1 0

 3 0

R.P.
 1 0

 3 0

R.P.
 1 0

 3 0

R.P.
 1 0

 3 0

R.P.
 1 0

 3 0

R.P.
  26

501

R.P.
  26

501

R.P.
  26

501

R.P.
  26

501

R.P.
  26

501

R.P.
    

1245
0

R.P.
    

1245
0

R.P.
    

1245
0

R.P.
    

1245
0

R.P.
    

1245
0

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

35623562356235623562

KAP 
8508

0
KAP 

8508
0

KAP 
8508

0
KAP 

8508
0

KAP 
8508

0

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

35623562356235623562
REMREMREMREMREM

REMREMREMREMREM

REMREMREMREMREM

REMREMREMREMREM

REMREMREMREMREM

 
 
   

 
 
 
 

 
 
   

 
 
 
 

 
 
   

 
 
 
 

 
 
   

 
 
 
 

 
 
   

 
 
 
 

KAPKAPKAPKAPKAP

K
A
P
 
 
 
9
0
2
3
3

K
A
P
 
 
 
9
0
2
3
3

K
A
P
 
 
 
9
0
2
3
3

K
A
P
 
 
 
9
0
2
3
3

K
A
P
 
 
 
9
0
2
3
3 R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

     

     

Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B

     

     

          

     
     

          

     

     

     

     

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot 7Lot 7Lot 7Lot 7Lot 7

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8

Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A
Lot 11Lot 11Lot 11Lot 11Lot 11

Lot 13Lot 13Lot 13Lot 13Lot 13

     
     

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2
Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3

Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4
Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

     

Lot 26Lot 26Lot 26Lot 26Lot 26

Lot 25Lot 25Lot 25Lot 25Lot 25

Lot DLot DLot DLot DLot D

Lot 24Lot 24Lot 24Lot 24Lot 24

Lot 23Lot 23Lot 23Lot 23Lot 23 Lot Lot Lot Lot Lot 

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2 Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3

Lot 20Lot 20Lot 20Lot 20Lot 20

Lot Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

     

     

     

     

     

     

Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B

Lot CLot CLot CLot CLot C

80
0

80
0

80
080
0

80
0

80
4

80
4

80
480
4

80
4

83
6

83
6

83
683
6

83
6

86
7

86
7

86
786
7

86
7

83
5

83
5

83
583
5

83
5

81
7

81
7

81
781
7

81
7

80
1

80
1

80
180
1

80
1

80
2

80
2

80
280
2

80
2

80
4

80
4

80
480
4

80
4

82
6

82
6

82
682
6

82
6

86
8

86
8

86
886
8

86
8

79
5

79
5

79
579
5

79
5

77
7

77
7

77
777
7

77
7

76
9

76
9

76
976
9

76
9

76
1

76
1

76
176
1

76
1

75
3

75
3

75
375
3

75
3

74
5

74
5

74
574
5

74
5

77
2

77
2

77
277
2

77
2

75
8

75
8

75
875
8

75
8

79
6

79
6

79
679
6

79
6

78
0

78
0

78
078
0

78
0

76
4

76
4

76
476
4

76
4

75
6

75
6

75
675
6

75
6

74
8

74
8

74
874
8

74
8

74
0

74
0

74
074
0

74
0

596
596596
596596

572
572572
572572

568
568568
568568562

562562
562562

548
548548
548548

549
549549
549549

561
561561
561561

569
569569
569569

573
573573
573573

585
585585
585585

77
9

77
9

77
977
9

77
9

76
3

76
3

76
376
3

76
3

75
9

75
9

75
975
9

75
9

75
5

75
5

75
575
5

75
5

74
7

74
7

74
774
7

74
7

73
9

73
9

73
973
9

73
9

6060606060

JERMYN AVE 0-600

JERMYN AVE 0-600

JERMYN AVE 0-600

JERMYN AVE 0-600

JERMYN AVE 0-600

GAHAN AVE 400-600

GAHAN AVE 400-600

GAHAN AVE 400-600

GAHAN AVE 400-600

GAHAN AVE 400-600

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

          

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 700-800

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 700-800

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 700-800

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 700-800

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 700-800

O
N

TA
R

IO
 ST 800-900

O
N

TA
R

IO
 ST 800-900

O
N

TA
R

IO
 ST 800-900

O
N

TA
R

IO
 ST 800-900

O
N

TA
R

IO
 ST 800-900

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 800-900

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 800-900

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 800-900

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 800-900

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 800-900

O
N

TA
R

IO
 ST 700-800

O
N

TA
R

IO
 ST 700-800

O
N

TA
R

IO
 ST 700-800

O
N

TA
R

IO
 ST 700-800

O
N

TA
R

IO
 ST 700-800

Rezone 769 & 777 Ontario Street from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: 
Lane) and also permit two dwelling units with vehicular access from the street on each lot 

- 28 -



Regular Council Meeting 
held at City of Penticton Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
 

Tuesday, March 21, 2017  
at 1:00 p.m. 

 

Resolutions 
 

    
Minutes of March 21, 2017 Regular Council    
 

 
12.6 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20 
 DVP PL2017-7845, DP PL2017-7846, DP PL2017-7847 
 Re: 708 Revelstoke Avenue/865 Railway Street 

 
212/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20,” a bylaw to Rezone Lot 57 District Lot 2 
Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049, located at 708 
Revelstoke Avenue, and to Rezone Lot 56 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale 
(Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049 Except Plan 36620, located at 865 Railway Street 
from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane), be given first reading and 
forwarded to the April 4, 2017 Public Hearing; 
AND THAT prior to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20,” a road dedication 
in accordance with Attachment ‘H’ is registered with the Land Title Office; 

AND THAT prior to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20,” the developers pay 
the cost of frontage upgrades which includes curb, gutter and sidewalk. 

THAT delegations and submissions be heard for “Development Variance Permit PL2017-
7845” for Lot 56 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) 
District Plan 1049 Except Plan 36620, located at 865 Railway Street, a permit to decrease the 
minimum west interior side yard from 1.5m to 1.2m and to decrease the minimum exterior 
side yard from 3.0m to 1.6m. 

AND THAT “DVP PL2017-7845” be considered only after adoption of “Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2017-20”. 

AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20,” 
approve Development Permit PL2017-7846  for Lot 56 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen 
Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049 Except Plan 36620, located at 865 
Railway Street, and Development Permit PL2017-7847 for Lot 57 District Lot 2 Group 7 
Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049, located at 708 
Revelstoke Avenue, a permit that allows for the construction of two front to back duplexes.   

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
  

- 29 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: March 21, 2017                           File No:  RZ PL2017-7844 
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer                     DVP PL2017-7845 
From: Randy Houle, Planner 1                   DP PL2017-7846 
Address:  708 Revelstoke Avenue/865 Railway Street                 DP PL2017-7847 
 
Subject: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20 
 Development Variance Permit PL2017-7845  
 Development Permit PL2017-7846 
 Development Permit PL2017-7847 
  
Staff Recommendation 

Zoning Amendment 

THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20,” a bylaw to Rezone Lot 57 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen 
Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049, located at 708 Revelstoke Avenue, and to Rezone Lot 56 
District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049 Except Plan 36620, 
located at 865 Railway Street from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane), be given first 
reading and forwarded to the April 4, 2017 Public Hearing; 

AND THAT prior to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20,” a road dedication in accordance with 
Attachment ‘H’ is registered with the Land Title Office; 

AND THAT prior to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20,” the developers pay the cost of 
frontage upgrades which includes curb, gutter and sidewalk. 

Development Variance Permit 

THAT delegations and submissions be heard for “Development Variance Permit PL2017-7845” for Lot 56 District 
Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049 Except Plan 36620, located at 
865 Railway Street, a permit to decrease the minimum west interior side yard from 1.5m to 1.2m and to 
decrease the minimum exterior side yard from 3.0m to 1.6m. 

AND THAT “DVP PL2017-7845” be considered only after adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20”. 

Development Permit 

AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20,” approve Development 
Permit PL2017-7846  for Lot 56 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District 
Plan 1049 Except Plan 36620, located at 865 Railway Street, and Development Permit PL2017-7847 for Lot 57 

- 30 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 22 

District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049, located at 708 
Revelstoke Avenue, a permit that allows for the construction of two front to back duplexes.   

Strategic priority objective 

N/A 

Background 

The subject properties (Attachment ‘A’) are zoned R2 (Small Lot Residential) and designated by the City’s 
Official Community Plan as MR (Medium Density Residential). Photos of the site are included as Attachment 
‘D’. Each lot is approximately 290m2 (3120 ft2). The site currently features a Single Family Dwelling that 
straddles each lot which will be relocated. The surrounding properties are primarily zoned RD2 (Duplex 
Housing: Lane) and RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing). Surrounding properties are designated by the OCP 
as MR (Medium Density Residential). Revelstoke Avenue is not accessible from Railway Street and the lane is 
only one way (west to east). 

The property is located within the Downtown Multiple Family Development Permit area, thus a 
development permit is required prior to construction. Additionally, approval of the rezoning must be 
granted by the Ministry of Transportation prior to adoption.  

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to construct a front to back duplex on both 708 Revelstoke Avenue & 865 Railway 
Street. Since a duplex is not a permitted use in the R2 zone, a rezoning to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) is 
required. 

Secondly, the applicant is requesting a Development Variance Permit for 865 Railway Street to vary the 
following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08: 

• Section 10.6.2.7.i: To decrease the minimum west interior yard from 1.5m to 1.2m.  
• Section 10.6.2.7.i: To decrease the minimum exterior side yard from 3.0m to 1.6m. 

Thirdly, the applicant requires Development Permit approval for the form and character of the duplexes and 
to address landscaping requirements.   

Financial implication 

Staff are recommending that Council require the applicant to pay the costs of the street frontage upgrades. 
If Council does not support this recommendation, then the approximate cost of $10,845 will be burdened on 
the tax payers. 

Technical Review 

This application was forwarded to the City’s Technical Planning Committee and reviewed by the Engineering 
and Public Works Departments. Through this process, it was determined that a condition be placed on the 
rezoning that a hammerhead widening be taken on the south side of the property. Another condition would 
be that the applicant would be required to pay for street frontage upgrades at an approximate cost of 
$10,845. This work is to include rollover curbing, 3.0m width sidewalk along frontage, asphalt and road 

- 31 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 22 

works, relocation of existing catch basin to gutter line and relocation of existing “no parking” sign. If the 
requests for the zoning amendment, variances and development permits are supported, BC Building Code 
and City bylaw provisions, such as height restrictions, will apply. 

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the rezoning 
application:  
 

Item 
Requirement  

RD2 Zone 
865 Railway 

Street 
708 Revelstoke 

Avenue 
Maximum Lot Coverage: 
Maximum Density: 

40% 
0.95 FAR 

35.2% 
0.71 FAR 

34.6% 
0.70 FAR 

Vehicle Parking: 1 per unit 1 per unit (2 total) 1 per unit (2 total) 
Required Setbacks 
Front yard (North): 
Rear yard (South): 
Interior yard: 
Exterior yard: 

 
4.5m 
6.0m 
1.5m 
3.0m   

 
4.5m  
6.0m 

1.2m (variance required) 
1.6m (variance required)  

 
4.5m  
6.0m  
1.5m 

NA  

Maximum Building 
Height: 

10.5m 6.9m 6.9m 

Other Information: 
Subject properties are located within the Downtown Multiple Family 
Development Permit Area. 

 

Analysis 
 
Zoning Amendment 
 
Support “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20” 
 
The site is situated in an area experiencing some densification. The OCP designation for this site is Medium 
Density Residential (MR), which supports duplex development. Staff consider that the zoning amendment to 
allow for two front to back duplexes represents best use of the land for the following reasons: 

• The proposal is consistent with the OCP’s view that infill residential development is an appropriate 
method of maximizing the use of land and increasing housing choices for Penticton residents. 

• The OCP encourages densification in areas where existing services can accommodate higher 
densities, which is the case here. 

• The proximity to the college and nearby services encourages more walking and active forms of 
transportation. 

• Converting an older single family dwelling into four dwelling units with adequate living space will 
help to address the housing shortages in Penticton.  
 

- 32 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 22 

Staff considers that the design is suitable and consistent with the redevelopment trends in the area. The 
location of the site and characteristics of the surrounding neighbourhood make it appropriate for residential 
densification. Given the above, staff recommends that Council support “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 
2017-20” and forward the application to the April 4, 2017 Public Hearing for comments from the public. 

Deny/Refer Zoning Amendment 

Council may consider that the proposed amendment is not suitable for this site. If this is the case, Council 
should deny the bylaw amendment. Alternatively, Council may wish to refer the matter back to staff to work 
with the applicant with any direction that Council considers appropriate.  

Development Variance Permit 

Support Variances for 865 Railway Street 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourages Council to be mindful of any hardship on the 
property that makes following the bylaw difficult or impossible; whether approval of the variance would 
cause a negative impact on neighbouring properties and if the variance request is reasonable.  
 
Section 10.6.2.7.i: To decrease the minimum west interior yard from 1.5m to 1.2m.  
 

• The proposed development will result in a 1.2m setback from the west property line. The lot width of 
865 Railway Street is slightly narrower than 708 Revelstoke Avenue, thus a variance is required to 
construct the same size of duplex on 865 Railway. It is not anticipated that the proposed variance 
will have an impact on surrounding neighbours.  
 

Section 10.6.2.7.i: To decrease the minimum exterior yard from 3.0m to 1.6m.  
 

• New Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 requires a 3.0m minimum exterior yard. The proposed development 
will result in a 1.6m setback from the east property line. The east face of the building (along Railway 
Street) will have a street frontage appearance. The 1.6m will allow adequate space for a walkway and 
river rock which will provide separation between the building and Railway Street. As there is no 
vehicular access from Railway Street, staff feels that it is reasonable to reduce the exterior yard to 
1.6m. In 2011, a variance to the exterior yard along Railway Street from 6.0m to 3.0m was approved 
for the multi-family development to the north (707 Revelstoke Avenue). Staff feel that since the 
height of the proposed building (6.9m) is much less than the 10.5m allowable, the visual impact 
from Railway Street won’t be affected negatively.  

Supporting the variances would help to maximize the living space of the duplexes, with little impact on the 
surrounding neighbourhood. Given the above, staff considers that the variances requested are reasonable 
and recommend that Council, after hearing from any affected neighbours, support the application.  
 
Deny/Refer Variances 

Council may consider that the proposed variances will negatively affect the neighborhood and the visual 
impact on Railway Street. If this is the case, Council should deny the variances. 

- 33 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 22 

Development Permit 

Support Development Permit PL2017-7846 & PL2017-7847 

The subject properties are located within the Downtown Multiple Family Development Permit Area.  As a 
consequence, a Development Permit is required. Although these Development Permits can be staff-issued, 
they have been included in this report for Council’s decision in order to streamline the approvals process. 
The Development Permit Area guidelines are intended to address the form and character of new multi-
family buildings. The objective of these guidelines, according to the OCP, is to “ensure that the citing, form, 
character and landscaping of new multi-family development and exterior renovations and additions to 
existing buildings in the downtown area are compatible with the context of the traditional neighbourhood 
character in some downtown neighbourhoods.” 
 

• The building shape, roof line and architectural features such as window and door detailing are 
sufficiently varied and create visual interest. 

• The entrances have a street orientation with picture windows, creating an aesthetically pleasing 
connection to the street. 

• The landscape plan features a variety of different plants, flowers and trees.  
 

Staff consider that the plans submitted meet the intent of the DPA guidelines and generally conform to the 
zoning bylaw. As such, staff recommend that Council approve the Development Permit applications. 
 
Deny/Refer Development Permit PL2017-7846 & PL2017-7847 

Council may consider that the proposals do not reflect the current built form of the neighbourhood, or that 
the development should soften the impact on neighbouring properties. If this is the case, Council should 
deny the permit. 

Alternate Recommendations 

1. THAT Council deny first reading of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20” and deny support for DVP 
PL2017-7845, DP PL2017-7846 & DP PL2017-7847. 

2. THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20” but deny support for DVP 
PL2017-7845, DP PL2017-7846 & DP PL2017-7847. 

3. THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20” and support DVP PL2017-
7845, DP PL2017-7846 & DP PL2017-7847 with conditions that Council feels are appropriate. 

Attachments 

Attachment A:       Subject Property Location Map 
Attachment B : Zoning Map 
Attachment C: OCP Map 
Attachment D:   Images of Subject Property  
Attachment E: Site Plan 
Attachment F: Elevations 
Attachment G: Landscape Plan 
Attachment H: Proposed Road Widening 
Attachment I:  Letter of Intent 

- 34 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 22 

Attachment J:  “Development Variance Permit PL2017-7845” (865 Railway Street) 
Attachment K: “Development Permit PL2017-7846” (865 Railway Street) 
Attachment L: “Development Permit PL2017-7847” (708 Revelstoke Avenue) 
Attachment M: “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20” 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Randy Houle 
Planner 1 

Approvals 

 

DDS 
 

AH 

CAO 
 

PW 

  
 

- 35 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 22 

 Attachment ‘A’ – Subject Property Location Map 

 

Figure 1: Subject Property Location Map 

 

- 36 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 22 

Attachment ‘B’ – Zoning Map 

 

Figure 2: Zoning Map 

- 37 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 22 

Attachment ‘C’- OCP Map 

 

Figure 3: OCP Map 

- 38 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 22 

Attachment ‘D’ – Images of Subject Property 

 

Figure 4: North View (from Revelstoke Avenue) 

 

Figure 5: South View (from Lane) 

 

- 39 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 22 

 

 

‘ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 6: East View (from Railway Street) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 40 -



 
Council Report  Page 12 of 22 

Attachment ‘E’ - Site Plan 

 

Figure 7: Site Plan 

- 41 -



 
Council Report  Page 13 of 22 

Attachment ‘F’ - Elevations 

 

 

 

 

- 42 -



 
Council Report  Page 14 of 22 

Attachment ‘G’ – Landscape Plan 

    

Figure 7: Landscape Plan 

 

- 43 -



 
Council Report  Page 15 of 22 

Attachment ‘H’ – Proposed Road Widening 

 

           Figure 8: Hammerhead Widening 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 44 -



 
Council Report  Page 16 of 22 

Attachment ‘I’- Letter of Intent 

 

Figure 9: Letter of Intent 

 

 

- 45 -



 
Council Report  Page 17 of 22 

         Attachment ‘J’- “Development Variance Permit PL2017-7845” (865 Railway Street) 

 

 

 

 

- 46 -



 
Council Report  Page 18 of 22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 47 -



 
Council Report  Page 19 of 22 

Attachment ‘K’- “Development Permit PL2017-7846” (865 Railway Street) 

 

- 48 -



 
Council Report  Page 20 of 22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 49 -



 
Council Report  Page 21 of 22 

Attachment ‘L’- “Development Permit PL2017-7847” (708 Revelstoke Avenue) 

 

 

- 50 -



 
Council Report  Page 22 of 22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 51 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-20 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Rezone Lot 57, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District 
Plan 1049, located at 708 Revelstoke Avenue, and 
Rezone Lot 56, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District 
Plan 1049, Except Plan 36620, located at 865 Railway Street from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to 
RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane). 

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 21 day of March, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 4 day of April, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

 day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 24 day of March, 2017 and the 29 day of March, 2017 in the 
Penticton Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 

      
 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 

 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

Approved pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the Transportation Act 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
____________________________________ 
for Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 

- 52 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’ 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-20 
 

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________ 

404-305

424-305

31
5-

42
4

31
5-

40
4

31
5-

40
4

R. P.     1  0  4  9

R. P.     1  0  4  9

R. P.     1  0  4  9

R. P.     1  0  4  9

R. P.     1  0  4  9

R.P. 5446
R.P. 5446
R.P. 5446

R.P. 5446
R.P. 5446

R.P. 8278
R.P. 8278
R.P. 8278

R.P. 8278
R.P. 8278

R.P. 4111
R.P. 4111
R.P. 4111

R.P. 4111
R.P. 4111

         

         

         

         

         

EPPEPPEPPEPPEPP
14355
14355
14355
14355
14355

Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B
Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3
Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

Lot 75Lot 75Lot 75Lot 75Lot 75
Lot 74Lot 74Lot 74Lot 74Lot 74

Lot 73Lot 73Lot 73Lot 73Lot 73Lot 72Lot 72Lot 72Lot 72Lot 72
t 71t 71t 71t 71t 71

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot 57Lot 57Lot 57Lot 57Lot 57
Lot 58Lot 58Lot 58Lot 58Lot 58

Lot 59Lot 59Lot 59Lot 59Lot 59
Lot 60Lot 60Lot 60Lot 60Lot 60

Lot 61Lot 61Lot 61Lot 61Lot 61
Lot 62Lot 62Lot 62Lot 62Lot 62

Lot 63Lot 63Lot 63Lot 63Lot 63
Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

     

Lot 56Lot 56Lot 56Lot 56Lot 56

79
0

79
0

79
0

79
0

79
0

77
8

77
8

77
8

77
8

77
8

75
4

75
4

75
4

75
4

75
4

75
0

75
0

75
0

75
0

75
0

74
6

74
6

74
6

74
6

74
6

77
1

77
1

77
1

77
1

77
1

76
3

76
3

76
3

76
3

76
3

75
9

75
9

75
9

75
9

75
9

74
9

74
9

74
9

74
9

74
9

74
1

74
1

74
1

74
1

74
1

73
9

73
9

73
9

73
9

73
9

73
1

73
1

73
1

73
1

73
1

72
3

72
3

72
3

72
3

72
3

70
7

70
7

70
7

70
7

70
7

73
0

73
0

73
0

73
0

73
0

72
2

72
2

72
2

72
2

72
2

71
4

71
4

71
4

71
4

71
4

70
8

70
8

70
8

70
8

70
8

865
865
865
865
865

71
5

71
5

71
5

71
5

71
5

70
3

70
3

70
3

70
3

70
3

7474747474

73
8

73
8

73
8

73
8

73
8

72
5

72
5

72
5

72
5

72
5

KAMLOOPS AVE 700-800

KAMLOOPS AVE 700-800

KAMLOOPS AVE 700-800

KAMLOOPS AVE 700-800

KAMLOOPS AVE 700-800

REVELSTOKE AVE 700-800

REVELSTOKE AVE 700-800

REVELSTOKE AVE 700-800

REVELSTOKE AVE 700-800

REVELSTOKE AVE 700-800

R
AI

LW
A

Y 
ST

 8
00

-9
00

R
AI

LW
A

Y 
ST

 8
00

-9
00

R
AI

LW
A

Y 
ST

 8
00

-9
00

R
AI

LW
A

Y 
ST

 8
00

-9
00

R
AI

LW
A

Y 
ST

 8
00

-9
00

Rezone 708 Revelstoke Ave & 865 Railway Street  
From R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) 

- 53 -



Regular Council Meeting 
held at City of Penticton Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
 

Tuesday, March 21, 2017  
at 1:00 p.m. 

 

Resolutions 
 

    
Minutes of March 21, 2017 Regular Council    
 

 
12.7 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21 
 DVP PL2016-7826, DP PL2016-7825 
 Re: 634 Westminster Aven ue W & 201 Maple Street 
 

213/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21”, a bylaw to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 to 
rezone Lot 1, Block 125, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale(Formerly Yale 
Lytton) District Plan 1175, located at 201 Maple Street and That Part of Lot 1, Block 125 
shown on Plan B5606, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen (Formerly Yale Lytton) Division 
Yale District, Plan 1175 located at 634 Westminster Avenue West, from R2 (Small Lot 
Residential ) to RM3 (Medium Density Multiple Housing), be given first reading and be 
forwarded to the April 4, 2017 Public Hearing; AND THAT prior to zoning approval the two 
lots be consolidated; 
 
 
THAT delegations and submissions for “Development Variance Permit PL2016-7826” on Lot 
1, Block 125, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale(Formerly Yale Lytton) District 
Plan 1175, located at 201 Maple Street and That Part of Lot 1, Block 125 shown on Plan 
B5606, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen (FORMERLY YALE LYTTON) Division Yale District, 
Plan 1175 located at 634 Westminster Avenue West, a permit to reduce the required parking 
from 16 stalls to 12 stalls and decrease the rear yard setback from 6m to 4.5m, be heard at 
the April 4 , 2017 Public Hearing; AND THAT Council consider “DVP PL2016-7826” following 
the adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21”. 
THAT Council receive DP PL2016-7825, a permit to develop a three (3) storey apartment 
building on Lot 1, Block 125, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly 
Yale Lytton) District Plan 1175, located at 201 Maple Street and That part of Lot 1, Block 125 
shown on Plan B5606, District Lot 2, Group 7 Similkameen (FORMERLY YALE LYTTON) 
Division Yale District Plan 1175 located at 634 Westminster Avenue West; AND THAT Council 
consider “DP PL2016-7825” following the adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-
21”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
  

- 54 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: March 21, 2017     File Nos:  RZ PL 7824 & DVP PL7826 & DP PL7825 
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Audrey Tanguay, Senior Planner 
Address:  634 Westminster Avenue W & 201 Maple Street 
 
Subject: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21 
 Development Permit PL7825 and Development Variance Permit PL7826 
  
Staff Recommendation 

Zoning Bylaw Amendment  

THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21”, a bylaw to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 to rezone Lot 1, 
Block 125, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale(Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1175, located 
at 201 Maple Street and That Part of Lot 1, Block 125 shown on Plan B5606, District Lot 2, Group 7, 
Similkameen (Formerly Yale Lytton) Division Yale District, Plan 1175 located at 634 Westminster Avenue 
West, from R2 (Small Lot Residential ) to RM3 (Medium Density Multiple Housing), be given first reading and 
be forwarded to the April 4 , 2017 Public Hearing; 

Development Variance Permit 

THAT delegations and submissions for “Development Variance Permit PL2016-7826” on Lot 1, Block 125, 
District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale(Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1175, located at 201 
Maple Street and That Part of Lot 1, Block 125 shown on Plan B5606, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen 
(FORMERLY YALE LYTTON) Division Yale District, Plan 1175 located at 634 Westminster Avenue West, a 
permit to reduce the required parking from 16 stalls to 12 stalls and decrease the rear yard setback from 6m 
to 4.5m, be heard at the April 4 , 2017 Public Hearing; 

AND THAT Council consider “DVP PL2016-7826” following the adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 
2017-21”. 

Development Permit 

THAT Council receive DP PL2016-7825, a permit to develop a three (3) storey apartment building on Lot 1, 
Block 125, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1175, 
located at 201 Maple Street and That part of Lot 1, Block 125 shown on Plan B5606, District Lot 2, Group 7 
Similkameen (FORMERLY YALE LYTTON) Division Yale District Plan 1175 located at 634 Westminster Avenue 
West; 

- 55 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 2 of 17 

AND THAT Council consider “DP PL2016-7825” following the adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 
2017-21”. 

Strategic priority objective 

The subject application meets the strategic pillars of creating a sustainable city and a livable city, through 
increasing residential density in areas where existing services already exist and in areas close to transit, 
commercial and employment centers.   

Background 

The subject property (Attachment ‘A’) is currently designated in the Official Community Plan 2002-20 (OCP) 
as MFMD (Multi Family Medium Density) and is also zoned R2 (Small Lot Residential) in the City’s Zoning 
Bylaw No. 2017-08. Photos of the site are included as Attachment ‘D’. The site extends to 1,008m2 (0.249acre) 
and currently features a single detached dwelling and accessory structure on each lot. These will be 
removed from the property. Housing in this area is slowly being replaced with more dense forms of 
construction. Other redevelopment in the immediate area feature townhouses and duplexes.  
 
The developer intends to develop a three (3) storey apartment building with surface parking. A total of 12 
units are proposed in the building with all 2 bedroom residential units. The development is intended to be a 
rental property. The access to this development is from Maple Street and the lane. The building is fronting 
Westminster Avenue W.  
 
Proposal 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to the zoning of the property from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to 
RM3 (Medium Density Multiple Housing), as identified in Zoning Bylaw 2011-23. 

Additionally, the applicant is seeking a Development Variance Permit to vary the following sections of 
Zoning Bylaw 2017-08: 

• Section 7.6. To reduce the parking requirement for an apartment from 16 stalls to 12 stalls  
• Section 10.9.2.8 To reduce the rear yard setback from 6m to 4.5m 

Project Specifications 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics as indicated on the submitted plans:  

Item 
Requirement 

RM3 Zone 
Provided on Plans 

Maximum Lot Coverage: 50% 38.2% 
Maximum Density: 1.6 FAR 1.11 FAR 

Vehicle Parking: 
1 space per unit (12) 

0.25 per unit visitor(4) 
Total: 16 stalls 

12( 1 for each unit) 
 0 visitor (variance required) 

Total: 12 stalls 

Bicycle Parking Class 1 0.5 per unit (6stalls) 
Class 2 0.1 per unit(2 stalls) 

 
6stalls in lockers 

2 bicycle rack 

- 56 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 3 of 17 

Required Setbacks 
Principal Building 
Front yard  
Rear yard 
Interior Side yard  
Exterior side yard 

 
 

3.0m 
6.0m 
4.5m 
6m 

 

 
 

3.0m 
4.5m(Variance required) 

4.5m 
6m 

 
Maximum Building Height: 24m 10.1m (3 storey) 

Other Information: 
• Property is the Downtown Multiple Family Development Permit Area (DPA) 

 

 

Development Engineering Review 

This application was forwarded to the City’s Technical Planning Committee and reviewed by the Engineering 
and Public Works Departments. Usual frontage upgrades and servicing requirements have been identified 
and will be included in the Building Permit application. These items have been communicated to the 
applicant.  

Financial implication 

N/A 
 
Analysis 

Support zoning amendment  
 
The subject property is currently designated Multi Family Medium Density (MFMD) by the City’s Official 
Community Plan (OCP). The OCP encourages intensification of residential land use and density. The zoning 
that currently exists on the site is R2 (Small Lot Residential) and only permits one single-family dwelling on 
each lot unless it is subdivided for additional single family dwellings. A number of zones conform to the 
Multi Family Medium Density Residential OCP designation including RM3 which provides for housing up to 6 
storeys. Staff considers that rezoning the lot from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM3 (Medium Density 
Multiple Housing), to enable this development is an appropriate use of the land for the following reasons: 
 

• According to the City’s OCP, residential development should be accommodated through infill 
development. Set in an area with a combination of single family homes, duplexes,  townhouses and 
apartments, this application encourages a mixed range of housing, types, tenures and densities;  

• Supports residential intensification near commercial activities, institutional facilities (including the 
Community Centre) and in proximity to the downtown.   

• Supports densification in areas where existing services can accommodate higher densities;  
• Facilitating the development of affordable housing and rental accommodations in Penticton. 
• The proposed apartment will fit into the existing mix of housing in the area and the design of the 

buildings will lend positively to the overall character of the community. 
 

 

- 57 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 4 of 17 

 
Staff considers that the design is fitting and consistent with the latest medium density development in the 
area. The plans, submitted in support of the rezoning application to RM3, demonstrate that the 
development meets the intent of the OCP. For these reasons staff is recommending that Council supports 
the land use designation change, as provided in this report and refers the application to the April 4 , 2017 
Public Hearing.  
 
Deny/Refer 

Council may consider that the proposed amendment is not suitable for this site. If this is the case, Council 
should deny the bylaw amendment. 

Support Variance 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourages Council to consider whether approval of the 
variance would cause a negative impact on neighbouring properties and if the variance request is 
reasonable.  

The proposed variances are as follows: 

Section 7.6 Parking Requirements Table 7.5 to reduce the number of required parking stalls from 16 
to 12 stalls 

As with other infill projects throughout the City, it is often challenging to build within the zoning 
requirements. This development variance application will maximize the development potential of the site in 
a manner which is sensitive to surrounding land uses, while providing 1 parking stall for each unit. The OCP 
has guidelines that support the reduced parking standard to accommodate density changes, providing that 
the development is within 400m of a transit stop. Staff does not consider that the variance will have a 
negative impact on any interests of acknowledged importance, including neighbouring properties.   

Section 10.9.2.8 of Zoning Bylaw 2011-23 to vary the minimum rear yard setback from 6m to 4.6m 

The applicant is requesting a reduction of the rear yard setback from 6.0m to 4.5m. The proposed 
development maximizes the use on the site. To accommodate the surface parking, the building needed to 
be setback from the lane and Maple Street. By reducing the rear yard setback, a practical layout, design and 
use of the site results. A 1.8m (6 feet) privacy fence will be erected along the south property line as a buffer. 
Staff does not consider that, given the scale of the variance requested, there will be an adverse impact on 
nearby properties.  

In considering this submission, staff recognized the limitations of this site to accommodate the development 
and determined that the variances being requested are in keeping with the objectives of the OCP. The 
developers have indicated that they plan on making all of the units available for rental. There is a strong 
need for additional, purpose built rental in Penticton. Staff considers that the development will make an 
overall positive contribution to the community. Given the above, staff considers that the request is 
reasonable and recommends that Council supports the variance and direct the permit to be issued. 

 

- 58 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 5 of 17 

Approve Development Permit  

The subject property is in the Downtown Multiple Development Permit Area. When evaluating an 
application, staff review the proposed plans against the DPA guidelines contained in the Official Community 
Plan. Staff feel that the plans conform to the DPA guidelines and the zoning regulations of the RM3 zone.  
 
The objective of the development permit area is to produce a streetscape defined by attractive buildings 
and landscaping as well as establishing building forms, site planning principles and landscape standards 
appropriate for the area. The development meets the following objectives of the OCP under the 
development permit guidelines:  
 

• The proposed design is livable with sun exposure and design of the landscaping that incorporates 
open spaces with a variety of plantings to enhance the livable environment. 

• The building design incorporates architectural detailing and a variety of building finishes that 
provide visual interest. 

• The proposed building provides strong linkage with the rest of the neighborhood and is compatible 
with the surrounding land use. 

• Landscaping is extensive and includes a number of trees, several shrubs and bushes that provide a 
decent view from the street level. 
 

This application blends into the established neighbourhood and meets the objectives of the downtown 
multiple development permit area. The overall design and finish of the buildings is of high quality and will 
add positively to Penticton as a whole. Staff considers that the project represents good urban planning 
principles and is in-line with the vision and intent of the OCP. For these reasons staff are recommending that 
Council approve the development permit.  
 
Deny or refer 
 
Council may consider that the proposed development does not meet the guidelines of the Downtown 
Multiple Development Permit Area and the intent of the Official Community Plan. If this is the case, Council 
can deny the amendments, development variance permit and the development permit. Alternatively, 
Council may want to refer the application back to staff for further work with the applicant.  
 

Alternate Recommendations 

1. THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.2017-21” but deny support to 
“Development Variance Permit PL2016-7826” and Development Permit PL2016-7825. 

 

Attachments 

Attachment A:       Subject Property Location Map 
Attachment B : OCP Map 
Attachment C : Zoning Map 
Attachment D:   Images of Subject Property  

- 59 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 6 of 17 

Attachment E:  Letter of Intent 
Attachment F: Elevations 
Attachment G: Renderings 
Attachment H: Site Plan 
Attachment I : DVP 
Attachment J:  Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-21 
 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
Audrey Tanguay, MCIP 
Senior Planner 

Approvals 

Director CAO 

AH PW 

- 60 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 7 of 17 

Attachment A  -  Subject Property 

 

Figure 1: Location Map 

  

- 61 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 8 of 17 

Attachment B  -  OCP Map 

 

Figure 2: OCP Map 

 

    

- 62 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 9 of 17 

Attachment C  -  Zoning Map 

 

Figure 3: Zoning Map 

 

 

    

- 63 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 10 of 17 

Attachment D - Images of the Subject Property 

 

Figure 4: View from Westminster Avenue 

 

 

Figure 5: View at the corner of Westminster Avenue and the lane 

 

- 64 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 11 of 17 

Attachment E –Letter of Intent 

 

 

 

 

 

- 65 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 12 of 17 

Attachment F – Elevations  

 

Figure 6: North Elevation (Westminster Avenue) 

 

Figure 7: West Elevation (View from lane) 

- 66 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 13 of 17 

 

Figure 8: South Elevation 

 

Figure 9: East Elevation 

 

 

 

 

- 67 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 14 of 17 

Attachment G – Building Rendering  

 

Figure 10: North Eastview 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 68 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 15 of 17 

Attachment H: Site Plan 

 

Figure 11: Site Plan 

  

- 69 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 16 of 17 

Attachment I: DVP 

 

- 70 -



 
N:\city\ADDRESS\Westminster Ave W\634\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-011  Page 17 of 17 

 

 

 

- 71 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-21 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Rezone Lot 1, Block 125, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale 
Lytton) District Plan 1175, located at 201 Maple Street and That Part of Lot 1, Block 125 shown 
on Plan B5606, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen (Formerly Yale Lytton) Division Yale District, 
Plan 1175 located at 634 Westminster Avenue West, from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM3 
(Medium Density Multiple Housing).  

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 21 day of March, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 4 day of April, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

 day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 24 day of March, 2017 and the 29 day of March, 2017 in the 
Penticton Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 

      
 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 

 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

Approved pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the Transportation Act 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
____________________________________ 
for Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 

- 72 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________

350-329

350-329

350

329-36

339-360

     

R. 
P.   

3 
 
 

R. 
P.   

3 
 
 

R. 
P.   

3 
 
 

R. 
P.   

3 
 
 

R. 
P.   

3 
 
 

R    P
      

     
    

 

R    P
      

     
    

 

R    P
      

     
    

 

R    P
      

     
    

 

R    P
      

     
    

 

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

PPPPP

R.
 

R.
 

R
 

R.
 

R.
 

R.P
. 679

1

R.P
. 679

1
R.P

. 679
1

R.P
. 679

1
R.P

. 679
1

R.P.
  36

62

R.P.
  36

62

R.P.
  36

62

R.P.
  36

62

R.P.
  36

62

               

R.P.
  35

20

R.P.
  35

20

R.P.
  35

20

R.P.
  35

20

R.P.
  35

20

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

B-56
06

B-56
06

B-56
06

B-56
06

B-56
06

R.P.
 117

5
R.P.

 117
5

R.P.
 117

5
R.P.

 117
5

R.P.
 117

5 R. P
.   

  1 
  0 

   

R. P
.   

  1 
  0 

   

R. P
.   

  1 
  0 

   

R. P
.   

  1 
  0 

   

R. P
.   

  1 
  0 

   

R. P
.   

     
    

R. P
.   

     
    

R. P
.   

     
    

R. P
.   

     
    

R. P
.   

     
    

 117
5

 117
5

 117
5

 117
5

 117
5

8595
6

8595
6

8595
6

8595
6

8595
6KAPKAPKAPKAPKAP

KAPKAPKAPKAPKAP

5385
2

5385
2

5385
2

5385
2

5385
2

KAPKAPKAPKAPKAP

5462
5

5462
5

5462
5

5462
5

5462
5

35203520352035203520

EPPEPPEPPEPPEPP

5039
3

5039
3

5039
3

5039
3

5039
3

     

     

     

Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15

Lot 16Lot 16Lot 16Lot 16Lot 16

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3

Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4

Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

     

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B

     
     

     

     
     

     

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1
Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15

L  L  L  L  L  

Lot 14Lot 14Lot 14Lot 14Lot 14

Lot 30Lot 30Lot 30Lot 30Lot 30

Lot 13Lot 13Lot 13Lot 13Lot 13

     

     
     

     
     

     

L  L  L  L  L  
Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8

Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9

     

Lot 10Lot 10Lot 10Lot 10Lot 10
Lot 11Lot 11Lot 11Lot 11Lot 11

     

Lot 12Lot 12Lot 12Lot 12Lot 12

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot 0Lot 0Lot 0Lot 0Lot 0

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2
Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

Lot 25Lot 25Lot 25Lot 25Lot 25

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

     

     
     

t 24t 24t 24t 24t 24

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

L t PT 4L t PT 4L t PT 4L t PT 4L t PT 4

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

5555
560
560
560
560
560568

568
568
568
568

573
573
573
573
573

561
561
561
561
561

27
3

27
3

27
327
3

27
3

23
3

23
3

23
323
3

23
3

21
7

21
7

21
721
7

21
7

21
1

21
1

21
121
1

21
1

20
7

20
7

20
720
7

20
7

26
8

26
8

26
826
8

26
8

25
0

25
0

25
025
0

25
0

22
6

22
6

22
622
6

22
6

20
1

20
1

20
120
1

20
1634

634
634
634
634

680
680
680
680
680

698
698
698
698
698

710
710
710
710
710

702
702
702
702
702

23
5

23
5

23
523
5

23
5

24
9

24
9

24
924
9

24
9

707
707
707
707
707

17
7

17
7

17
717
7

17
7

19
6

19
6

19
619
6

19
6

19
0

19
0

19
019
0

19
0

603
603
603
603
603

576
576
576
576
576

584
584
584
584
584598

598
598
598
598

585
585
585
585
585597

597
597
597
597

594
594
594
594
594

B
ASSETT ST 100-200

B
ASSETT ST 100-200

B
ASSETT ST 100-200

B
ASSETT ST 100-200

B
ASSETT ST 100-200

RENE A  
RENE A  
RENE A  
RENE A  
RENE A  

 
 100-200

 
 100-200

 
 100-200

 
 100-200

 
 100-200

B
ASSETT ST 200-300

B
ASSETT ST 200-300

B
ASSETT ST 200-300

B
ASSETT ST 200-300

B
ASSETT ST 200-300

M
A

PLE ST 200-300

M
A

PLE ST 200-300

M
A

PLE ST 200-300

M
A

PLE ST 200-300

M
A

PLE ST 200-300

R AVE W 700-800

R AVE W 700-800

R AVE W 700-800

R AVE W 700-800

R AVE W 700-800

WESTMINSTER AVE W 600-700

WESTMINSTER AVE W 600-700

WESTMINSTER AVE W 600-700

WESTMINSTER AVE W 600-700

WESTMINSTER AVE W 600-700

WESTMINSTER AVE W 5

WESTMINSTER AVE W 50

WESTMINSTER AVE W 50

WESTMINSTER AVE W 5

WESTMINSTER AVE W 5

Rezone 634 Westminster Ave W & 201 Maple Street
From R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM3 (Medium Density Multiple Housing)

- 73 -



- 74 -



Regular Council Meeting 
held at City of Penticton Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
 

Tuesday, March 21, 2017  
at 1:00 p.m. 

 

Resolutions 
 

    
Minutes of March 21, 2017 Regular Council    
 

 
12.8 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-22 
 Re:  230 Brunswick Street 

 
214/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-22”, a bylaw adding section 11.6.4.2: “ In the case 
of Lot 14, District Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton), District 
Plan 871, located at 230 Brunswick Street, indoor millwork shall be permitted”, be 
introduced, read a first time and be forwarded to the April 4, 2017 Public Hearing. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
  

- 75 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: March 21, 2017        File No:  RZ PL 7827 
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Audrey Tanguay, Senior Planner 
Address:  230 Brunswick Street 
 
Subject: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-22 
   
Staff Recommendation 

Zoning Bylaw Amendment  

THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-22”, a bylaw adding section 11.6.4.2: “ In the case of Lot 14, 
District Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton), District Plan 871, located at 230 
Brunswick Street, indoor millwork shall be permitted”, be introduced, read a first time and be forwarded to 
the April 4, 2017 Public Hearing. 

Strategic priority objective 

N/A 

Background 

The subject property (Attachment ‘A’) is currently designated in the Official Community Plan 2002-20 (OCP) 
as DC (Downtown Commercial) and is also zoned C6 (Mixed Use Commercial) in the City’s Zoning Bylaw No. 
2017-08. Photos of the site are included as Attachment ‘D’. The site extends to 623m2 (0.154acre) and 
currently features an existing building and a metal storage container. This site is situated in an area with a 
mix of commercial, residential and office buildings.   
Proposal 

The applicant has applied for a site specific zoning on the property to add the use ‘millwork’ into the C6 zone 
for this property only.  

Development Engineering Review 

This application was forwarded to the City’s Technical Planning Committee and reviewed by the Engineering 
and Public Works Departments. No concerns were identified.  

Financial implication 

N/A 
 

- 76 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Brunswick St\230\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-013  Page 2 of 7 

Analysis 

Support zoning amendment  
The subject property is designated for Downtown Commercial (DC) by OCP Bylaw 2002-20. This designation 
encourages a wide range of pedestrian oriented retail, office, institutional use, entertainment and also 
includes multi-family residential above the ground floor. Peripheral areas in the downtown commercial land 
use designation may include service commercial uses that are contained within a building. Under the C6 
zoning, custom indoor manufacturing is a permitted use but is limited to small scale on-site indoor 
production with hand tools. In this case, the applicant is proposing to have on-site indoor production of 
cabinets using larger tools.  
 
This is an area of the downtown that was once zoned for heavy commercial activities and included indoor 
service industries. Staff feels that the size, scale and scope of the proposed use are compatible with the 
character of the area. The service commercial use meets the intent of the Downtown Commercial policies. 
Staff do not feel that any negative externalities will impact any neighbouring business and residences, given 
that the proposed use of the property is indoor. As such, staff recommend that Council support the 
application to rezone the property and refer the application to the April 4th 2017 Public Hearing.  
 
Deny/Refer 
 
Council may feel that the proposed amendment is not suitable for this site. If this is the case, Council should 
deny the bylaw amendment. Alternatively, Council may refer the application back to staff with further 
instructions. 
 
Alternate Recommendations 

1. THAT Council deny first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.2017-22” . 

Attachments 
Attachment A:       Subject Property Location Map 
Attachment B : OCP Map 
Attachment C : Zoning Map 
Attachment D:   Images of Subject Property  
Attachment E:  Letter of Intent 
Attachment F: Zoning Amendment Bylaw 2017-22 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Audrey Tanguay, MCIP 
Senior Planner 

Approvals 

Director CAO 

AH PW 

- 77 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Brunswick St\230\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-013  Page 3 of 7 

Attachment A - Subject Property 

 

Figure 1: Location Map 

- 78 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Brunswick St\230\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-013  Page 4 of 7 

Attachment B  -  OCP Map 

 

Figure 2: OCP Map 

    

- 79 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Brunswick St\230\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-013  Page 5 of 7 

Attachment C  -  Zoning Map 

 

Figure 3: Zoning Map 

    

- 80 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Brunswick St\230\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-013  Page 6 of 7 

Attachment D - Images of the Subject Property 

 

Figure 4: View from Brunswick Street 

 

Figure 5: View from the Lane 

 

- 81 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Brunswick St\230\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-013  Page 7 of 7 

Attachment E –Letter of Rationale 

 

 

 

 

- 82 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-22  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-22 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-22”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Add Section 11.6.4.2: “In the case of Lot 14, District Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale 
(Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 871, located at 230 Brunswick Street, indoor millwork shall 
be permitted.”   

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 21 day of March, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 4 day of April, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

 day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 24 day of March, 2017 and the 29 day of March, 2017 in the 
Penticton Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 

      
 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 

 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

Approved pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the Transportation Act 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
____________________________________ 
for Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 

- 83 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’ 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-22 
 

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________ 

350-359

350-369

369-360

4371
3

4371
3

4371
3

4371
3

4371
3

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

R.P.
 871

R.P.
 871

R.P.
 871

R.P.
 871

R.P.
 871

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

R. 
P.  8

 0 5

R. 
P.  8

 0 5

R. 
P.  8

 0 5

R. 
P.  8

 0 5

R. 
P.  8

 0 5

R.P
.   8

 7 1

R.P
.   8

 7 1

R.P
.   8

 7 1

R.P
.   8

 7 1

R.P
.   8

 7 1

K  K  K   K  

     

EPPEPPEPPEPPEPP
R.P.

 348
14

R.P.
 348

14

R.P.
 348

14

R.P.
 348

14

R.P.
 348

14

R.P.
 B-4

056

R.P.
 B-4

056

R.P.
 B-4

056

R.P.
 B-4

056

R.P.
 B-4

056
R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

877877877877877

R.
P.

R.
P.

R.
P.

R.
P.

R.
P.8
7787
7

87
7

87
7

87
7

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

B-63
47

B-63
47

B-63
47

B-63
47

B-63
47

R. 
P.   

8 7 7

R. 
P.   

8 7 7

R. 
P.   

8 7 7

R. 
P.   

8 7 7

R. 
P.   

8 7 7

R. P
.   

   8
  7 

 1

R. P
.   

   8
  7 

 1

R. P
.   

   8
  7 

 1

R. P
.   

   8
  7 

 1

R. P
.   

   8
  7 

 1

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

877877877877877

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

877877877877877

     

R.P
. 805

R.P
. 805

R.P
. 805

R.P
. 805

R.P
. 805

KAP 
6598

9
KAP 

6598
9

KAP 
6598

9
KAP 

6598
9

KAP 
6598

9

R.P
.  87

7

R.P
.  87

7
R.P

.  87
7

R.P
.  87

7
R.P

.  87
7

     

4420
6

4420
6

4420
6

4420
6

4420
6

Lot 13Lot 13Lot 13Lot 13Lot 13

Lot 24Lot 24Lot 24Lot 24Lot 24

Lot 23Lot 23Lot 23Lot 23Lot 23

Lot 14Lot 14Lot 14Lot 14Lot 14

Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22

Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15

Lot 21Lot 21Lot 21Lot 21Lot 21

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot ALot 20Lot 20Lot 20Lot 20Lot 20

Lot 19Lot 19Lot 19Lot 19Lot 19

Lot 18Lot 18Lot 18Lot 18Lot 18

Lot 17Lot 17Lot 17Lot 17Lot 17

Lot 12Lot 12Lot 12Lot 12Lot 12

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

     

L  L  L  L  L  
Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3
Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4

Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5
Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6

Lot 7Lot 7Lot 7Lot 7Lot 7
Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8

Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9Lot 10Lot 10Lot 10Lot 10Lot 10

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot 0Lot 0Lot 0Lot 0Lot 0

Lot 0Lot 0Lot 0Lot 0Lot 0
Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3

Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B
Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

          

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B

Lot 1Lot 16Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot Lot Lot Lot Lot 

L  L  L  L  L  

     

     

     

     
     

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot 10Lot 10Lot 10Lot 10Lot 10

Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9

Lot 11Lot 11Lot 11Lot 11Lot 11

     

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

29
1

29
1

29
129
1

29
1

28
3

28
3

28
328
3

28
3

27
5

27
5

27
527
5

27
5

26
9

26
9

26
926
9

26
9

25
7

25
7

25
725
7

25
7

23
3

23
3

23
323
3

23
3

22
5

22
5

22
522
5

22
5

21
7

21
7

21
721
7

21
7

24
2

24
2

24
224
2

24
2

23
4

23
4

23
423
4

23
4

22
2

22
2

22
222
2

22
2

21
4

21
4

21
421
4

21
4

300
300
300
300
300310

310
310
310
310318

318
318
318
318324

324
324
324
324342

342
342
342
342380

380
380
380
380

26
0

26
0

26
026
0

26
0

24
2

24
2

24
224
2

24
2

23
0

23
0

23
023
0

23
0

21
6

21
6

21
621
6

21
6

288
288
288
288
288

280
280
280
280
280

272
272
272
272
272

264
264
264
264
264

256
256
256
256
256

248
248
248
248
248

240
240
240
240
240

228
228
228
228
228

216
216
216
216
216

208
208
208
208
208

200
200
200
200
200

77777
401
401
401
401
401

351
351
351
351
351

22
8

22
8

22
822
8

22
8

304
304
304
304
304

25
4

25
4

25
425
4

25
4

LA
K

EVIEW
 ST

LA
K

EVIEW
 ST

LA
K

EVIEW
 ST

LA
K

EVIEW
 ST

LA
K

EVIEW
 ST

    
    
  

 
 

00-300
 

 
0

300
 

 
00

300
 

 
00

300
 

 
00

300

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 151-200

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 151-200

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 151-200

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 151-200

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 151-200
   
   
   
   
   

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 200-300

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 200-300

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 200-300

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 200-300

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 200-300

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
   
   
   
   

WESTMINSTER AVE W 300-400

WESTMINSTER AVE W 300-400

WESTMINSTER AVE W 300-400

WESTMINSTER AVE W 300-400

WESTMINSTER AVE W 300-400

WESTMINSTER AVE W 200-300

WESTMINSTER AVE W 200-300

WESTMINSTER AVE W 200-300

WESTMINSTER AVE W 200-300

WESTMINSTER AVE W 200-300Site Specific Zoning Amendment To Permit Indoor Millwork at  
230 Brunswick Street (C6-Mixed Use Commercial) 

- 84 -



Regular Council Meeting 
held at City of Penticton Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
 

Tuesday, March 21, 2017  
at 1:00 p.m. 

 

Resolutions 
 

    
Minutes of March 21, 2017 Regular Council    
 

 
12.9 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-23 
 Re:  453 Winnipeg Street and 232 Wade Avenue 

 
215/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw 2017-23”, being a bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw  No. 
2017-08” by adding the use ‘office’ as a site specific use to Lot A, District Lot 4, Group 7, 
Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District, Plan KAP77551 located at 453 
Winnipeg Street and the use ‘parking’ on Lot E, District Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen 
(Formerly Y ale Lytton) Division Yale District, Plan 502,  Except Plan B4474, located at 232 
Wade Avenue, be given first reading and be forwarded to the April 4, 2017 Public Hearing. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
  

- 85 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 
 
 
Date: March 21, 2017       File No:  PRJ2017-0    
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer  
From: Blake Laven, Planning Manager  
Address: 453 Winnipeg Street and 232 Wade Avenue  
 

Subject:   Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-23    
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw 2017-23”, being a bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw  No. 2017-08” by adding 
the use ‘office’ as a site specific use to Lot A, District Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly 
Yale-Lytton) District, Plan KAP77551 located at 453 Winnipeg Street and the use ‘parking’ on Lot E, District 
Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen (Formerly Y ale Lytton) Division Yale District, Plan 502,  Except Plan B4474, 
located at 232 Wade Avenue, be given first reading and be forwarded to the April 4, 2017 Public Hearing. 
 
Strategic priority objective 
 
Support for the proposal will keep an important regional employer in Penticton.  
 
Background 
 
This application involves zoning amendments on two separate lots, which form part of a large ‘social 
housing campus’ on the corner of Wade Avenue and Winnipeg Street.  
 
The campus currently features: The Tower Apartments, 120 units of subsidized housing in a 6 storey 
building; Chestnut Place, a two storey, 32 unit assisted living senior’s residence; and a recreational drop-in 
centre called the Leisure Centre. The campus also features a ‘community garden’ for those residents living in 
the Tower. The campus is operated by the not-for profit group: Penticton and District Society for Community 
Living (PDSCL) and was at one time partly owned by BC Housing (Tower) and partly owned by Interior 
Health (Community Garden, Leisure Centre and Chestnut Place). BC Housing has recently been transferred 
ownership of the entire campus. The subject application involves the community garden and the Leisure 
Centre, but will not affect the Tower Apartments or Chestnut Place.  
 
Over the past decade, the Leisure Centre, has seen a decline in usage and became a financial liability for 
PDSCL. This has created an opportunity for the repurposing of the space. BC Housing has announced their 
intention to renovate the Leisure Centre and relocate their regional office from 280 Nanaimo Avenue to that 
location. As part of the renovation, they are also proposing to relocate the community garden from its 

- 86 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 8 

current location elsewhere on the campus, and create additional parking for their staff and residents of the 
Tower Apartments where the gardens currently are.  
 
Both properties, 453 Winnipeg Street (Leisure Centre) and 232 Wade Avenue (Community garden) are zoned 
RM3 (Medium Density Residential). The RM3 zone does not permit the use ‘office’ as a permitted use or allow 
the use parking. To proceed with the project, an amendment to the zoning bylaw is required.  
 
Proposal 
 
The applicants working on behalf of BC Housing are proposing amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 to 
add the following sections to the zoning bylaw: 
 

10.9.5 Site Specific Provisions 
 

.1  In the case of Lot A, District Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District, 
Plan KAP77551 located at 453 Winnipeg Street, the use ‘office’ shall be permitted. 

 
.2  In the case of Lot E, District Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen (Formerly Yale Lytton) Division Yale District, 

Plan 502, Except Plan B4474, located at 232 Wade Avenue, the use ‘parking’ shall be permitted.  
 
Technical Review 
 
This application was forwarded to the City’s Technical Planning Committee. No concerns were raised with 
regard to the proposed change of use. All works to convert the recreational facility from an assembly use to 
an office use will be done through building permit approval and with professional architect oversite.  
 
Environmental Review  
 
As part of the application an environmental Preliminary Site Investigation and Stage II Site Investigation was 
submitted for 232 Wade Avenue. The report tested the soils of the property and found elevated levels of 
certain hydrocarbons. The levels are not concerning for residential development, however, the report does 
not recommend agricultural uses of the property. The report makes the assumption that a house fire which 
occurred on the property some decades ago was the cause of the minor contamination. Nevertheless, the 
land is not considered suitable to be continued as a community garden in its current state. If the zoning 
amendment is not successful and the community garden use were to continue on the site, the residents 
should use raised beds as opposed to planting directly into the earth as has been the practice to date.   
 
Consultation 
 
Staff have met with several of the residents of the Tower Apartments in regard to the relocation of the 
garden plots. The residents expressed their desire to see the garden improved, specifically with free 
irrigation, proper security in place and storage for gardening implements. These comments have been 
forwarded to BC Housing. BC Housing has made a commitment to work with the community garden group 

- 87 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 8 

in creating a suitable replacement. It should be noted, that the preference of the garden user group would 
be to keep the garden in its current location. The garden user group consists of 13 members.  
 
Financial implications  
 
N/A 
 
Analysis 
 
The Tower Apartments have been an important contributor to Penticton’s social housing inventory since its 
construction in the early 1970s. The recreational component of the housing has been in decline for the past 
decade as the tenant mix of the Tower has moved from a senior focused tenant population to a more mixed 
population. Staff consider the re-use of the recreational space for the BC housing offices a positive outcome.     
 
Staff were initially concerned about the removal of a community garden, but are satisfied with a 
commitment from BC Housing to relocate the garden.  
 
As for the use of 232 Wade Avenue for parking, 1/3 of the property is already used for parking. Under the 
application the parking will be expanded and all of the parking will be developed to the bylaw standards 
with hard surface paving, drainage, lighting and landscaping integrated into the design.   
 
The subject property is designated as HR (High Density Residential) by the City’s Official Community Plan 
(OCP). The policies of the HR designation permit office uses through a zoning amendment, and provides 
some guidance to staff and Council to determine suitability. The guidelines are as follows: 
 
1. The size scale and scope of the proposed use is compatible with the character of the area; and, 
2. The proposed use will not have a negative impact, including noise, unacceptable traffic generation or 

invasion of privacy on adjacent residential uses.  
 

Staff consider the proposal to be in line with these guidelines. As no new building is being proposed, the 
change in neighbourhood character will be minimal. The function of the building will change in ways that 
may have an impact on neighbouring properties, but staff do not consider the impact to be negative. The BC 
Housing offices will be open during regular business hours and parking is being expanded to accommodate 
the expected staff and clients.  
 
With regard to the expansion of the parking on 232 Wade Avenue, care will need to be taken to ensure 
proper landscaping to soften the impact of the increase in asphalt and to make sure that any lighting is 
designed to not impact the neighbouring residential building.  
 
Given the above, staff are recommending that Council give first reading to the bylaw and forward it to the 
April 4th, 2017 Public Hearing to hear comments from the community.  
 
 
 

- 88 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 8 

Alternate recommendations 
 
THAT Council deny giving first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-23” 
 
THAT Council refer Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-23 back to staff to conduct further public 
consultation on the land use change.  
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment A – Subject property location map 
Attachment B – Current site map  
Attachment C – Photos of the subject property 
Attachment D – Site plan  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Blake Laven, RPP, MCIP 
Planning Manager 
 
 
Approvals 

Director 
Chief Administrative 

Officer 

AH 

 

PW 
 

 
  

- 89 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 8 

Attachment A 
Subject Property Location Map 

 
 

 
 

- 90 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 8 

Attachment B 
Current Site Map  

 
 
 

 
 

  

- 91 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 8 

Attachment C 
Photos of subject lands 

 
 

 
 
 

 

- 92 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 8 

Attachment D 
Proposed Site Plan  

 

 

- 93 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-23  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-23 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-23”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Add 10.9.5 Site Specific Provisions 
 
.1  In the case of Lot A, District Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) 
District, Plan KAP77551, located at 453 Winnipeg Street, the use ‘office’ shall be permitted. 
 
.2  In the case of Lot E, District Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen (Formerly Yale Lytton) Division Yale  
District, Plan 502, Except Plan B4474, located at 232 Wade Avenue, the use ‘parking’ shall be 
permitted. 

 
 
READ A FIRST time this 21 day of March, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 4 day of April, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

 day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 24 day of March, 2017 and the 29 day of March, 2017 in the 
Penticton Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 
 

      
 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 

 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

Approved pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the Transportation Act 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
____________________________________ 
for Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 

- 94 -



Regular Council Meeting 
held at City of Penticton Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
 

Tuesday, March 21, 2017  
at 1:00 p.m. 

 

Resolutions 
 

    
Minutes of March 21, 2017 Regular Council    
 

 
12.10 OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-24 
 DVP PL2016-7813 
 Re:  135 Front Street 
 

216/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT prior to consideration of OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-24 and in accordance with 
Section 475 of Local Government Act, Council considers whether early and on-going 
consultation, in addition to the required Public Hearing, is necessary with: 

1. One or more persons, organizations or authorities; 
2. The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen; 
3. Local First Nations; 
4. School District #67; and 
5. The provincial or federal government and their agencies; 

AND THAT it is determined that the Public Hearing is sufficient consultation; 

AND THAT “OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-24”, being a bylaw to amend “OCP Bylaw No. 
2002-20” shown as Attachment ‘J’ of this report to allow a 5 storey building at 135 Front 
Street; be introduced, given first reading and be forwarded to the April 4, 2017  Public 
Hearing.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
  

- 95 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: March 21, 2017     File No:  OCP PL 7812 & DVP PL7813 & DP PL7814 
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Audrey Tanguay, Senior Planner 
Address:  135 Front Street 
 
Subject: OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-24 
 Development Permit PL7814 and  
 Development Variance Permit PL7813  
  
Staff Recommendation 

OCP 

THAT prior to consideration of OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-24 and in accordance with Section 475 of 
Local Government Act, Council considers whether early and on-going consultation, in addition to the 
required Public Hearing, is necessary with: 

1. One or more persons, organizations or authorities; 
2. The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen; 
3. Local First Nations; 
4. School District #67; and 
5. The provincial or federal government and their agencies; 

AND THAT it is determined that the Public Hearing is sufficient consultation; 

AND THAT “OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-24”, being a bylaw to amend “OCP Bylaw No. 2002-20” shown 
as Attachment ‘J’ of this report to allow a 5 storey building at 135 Front Street; be introduced, given first 
reading and be forwarded to the April 4th, 2017  Public Hearing.  
 
Development Variance Permit 

THAT delegations and submissions for “Development Variance Permit PL2016-7813” on Lot 13, Block 1, 
District 202, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 269, located at 135 Front Street, a permit to 
increase the maximum height of a building from 15m to 20.5m, increase the allowable 0.4m projection for 
architectural features to 1.2m and waive the requirement for Class II bicycle parking stalls be heard at the 
April 4th, 2017 Public Hearing; 

AND THAT Council consider “DVP PL2016-7813” following the adoption of “OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 
2017-24”. 

 

- 96 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 2 of 21 

 

Development Permit 

THAT Council approve DP PL2016-7814, a permit to allow the construction of a 5 storey building on Lot 13, 
Block 1, District 202, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 269, located at 135 Front Street; 

AND THAT Council consider “DP PL2016-7814” following the adoption of “OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-
24”. 

Strategic priority objective   N/A 

Background 

Council adopted the Downtown Plan into the City’s Official Community Plan (OCP) in 2013, as the first step 
in Council Strategic Priority of Downtown Revitalization. The Downtown Plan generated wide support from 
the community and local businesses with significant public engagement and community input that created 
the vision and direction for the future of Downtown Penticton. 

The Downtown Plan formalized the vision and set planning principles, objectives, policies and actions to 
guide the development and revitalization of downtown. The Downtown Plan main goals include: 

• Build a vibrant, healthy and safe place for more people to live, work and play.  

• Create strong identity and character. 

• Create partnerships to make it easier for businesses to invest.  

The subject property (Attachment ‘A’) is currently designated in the Official Community Plan 2002-20 (OCP) 
as DC (Downtown Commercial) and is also zoned C5 (Urban Centre Commercial) in the City’s Zoning Bylaw 
No. 2017-08. Photos of the site are included as Attachment ‘D’. This lot is part of the 6 parcels of land that 
once formed part of the historic Slack Alice building. The site has been vacant since 2012. The subject site is 
279m2 (0.068 acre) in size. All the properties along Front Street are designated Downtown Commercial (DC) 
by the City’s Official Community Plan. The downtown plan specifically addresses opportunities for 
redevelopment and re-invention with a strong connection with creativity and history. A focus has been 
established to retain the integrity of the downtown heritage sites and buildings.  
 
The developer is proposing to develop a strata, multi-family project comprising one storey commercial and 4 
storey residential with a total of 14 residential units. Only 2 parking stalls are provided on site. The developer 
has secured an agreement to bring a carshare program to the downtown area, which is considered to be a 
positive contribution towards alternative transportation downtown and in the community. Under the 
zoning bylaw, the required number of parking spaces may be reduced by a maximum a three (3) spaces if 
the building provides one co-operative vehicle and one co-operative vehicle parking space. Additionally, six 
(6) additional required parking spaces will be located on the site directly to the north-east. The developer 
will enter into an agreement with the City to secure the stalls. In the future, if the developer wishes to 
redevelop the vacant lot and eliminate the parking, cash in-lieu of these parking spaces will be triggered at 
$6,000 per parking space.  

- 97 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 3 of 21 

In addition to an OCP amendment and development permit, the applicant is requesting a variance to the 
maximum allowable projection for balconies and walls and an increase in the height of the building to allow 
one extra storey.  

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing the following amendments to the Official Community Plan Bylaw 2002-20: 

• To amend Section 2.1.2 :The Downtown and Urban Villages to increase the maximum height 
in the Downtown Commercial (DC) designated area on Front Street from a 4 storey building 
to a 5 storey building at135 Front Street. 

The applicant is seeking a Development Variance Permit to vary the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 
2017-08: 

• Section 11.5.3.2: To increase the maximum architectural projection from 0.4m to 1.2m 
• Section 11.5.2.5 ii: To increase the maximum height on Front Street from 15m to 20.5m 
• Section 6.4.3: To waive the requirement for Class II bicycle parking stalls.  

Furthermore, the applicant is also seeking a development permit to construct a 5 storey building at 135 
Front Street. 

Project Specifications 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the 
application:  

Development Statistics 

Item Requirement C5 Zone Provided on Plans  
Maximum Lot Coverage: 100% 100% 
Maximum Density: 6.0 FAR 3.9 FAR 

Vehicle Parking: 10 stalls 

2 stalls on site 
Car share( substitute for 3 stalls) 
6 stalls provided on adjacent lot 
 

Bicycle Parking 
Class I 
Class II 

 
0.5 per unit (5)and minimum 2 for 
commercial uses 
0.1 per unit 

 
15stalls 
 
0 (variance) 

Required Setbacks: 
All yards 

 
0.0 m  
 

 
0.0 m 

Maximum Building Height: 15m (Front Street) 20.5 m(variance) 

Other Information: 

 
• The DP area that the property is situated in is the “Downtown Enterprise 

Development Permit” area. 
 

 

- 98 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 4 of 21 

Development Engineering Review 

This application was forwarded to the City’s Technical Planning Committee and reviewed by the Engineering 
and Public Works Departments. Usual frontage upgrades and servicing requirements have been identified 
and will be included in the Building Permit application. These items have been communicated to the 
applicant.  

Financial implication 

N/A 
Analysis 
 
Support OCP amendment  
 
The opportunities for larger scale development downtown are restricted. The Downtown plan limits the 
height of buildings on Main Street and Front Street to three storeys with the option where large 
redevelopment property exists, an increased density and height may be suitable subject to a complete 
design review. The developer has worked with a local architect to submit plans that compliment the 
diversity and heritage character of Front Street. Staff feels that the increase in height will have minimal 
impact on the street considering the design proposed. The impact that will occur resulting from the higher 
storey compared to the potential 10 storeys on adjacent streets including Ellis Street and Martin Street is 
minor. The proposal adds to the already diverse range of densities of this area and fills a gap in the 
streetscape that is sorely needed. 
 
In summary, the development meets the following objectives of the OCP:  
 

• Encourage residential intensification and allow for a visually interesting building design 
• Promote infill development with priority on mixed use development with ground floor 

commercial 
• Retains the Downtown Commercial areas as a compact well defined and pedestrian oriented 

area. 
• Encourage densification in areas where existing services can accommodate higher densities; and 
• Encourage Front street commercial areas with infill commercial development on vacant parcels.  
 

Overall, staff believe that the proposed building will generate positive impacts for the downtown with the 
increase in commercial area and the 14 new residential units. Staff considers that the design is suitable and 
consistent with the redevelopment in the downtown. The location of the site and characteristics of the 
surrounding make it ideally suited for densification. For these reasons staff are recommending that Council 
support the OCP amendment as provided in this report and refer the application to the April 4 , 2017 Public 
Hearing.  
 

Deny/Refer 

Council may consider that the proposed amendment is not suitable for this site. If this is the case, Council 
should deny the bylaw amendment. If the OCP amendment does not go forward, the property will be 

- 99 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 5 of 21 

restricted to a 4 storey building. Alternatively, Council may wish to refer the matter back to staff to work with 
the applicant with any direction that Council considers appropriate.  

Support Variance 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourages Council to consider whether approval of the 
variance would cause an undesirable impact on neighbouring properties and if the variance request is 
reasonable. The proposed variances are as follows: 

Section 11.5.3.2:  To increase the maximum projection for decorative building features from 0.4m to 1.2m 

The zoning bylaw states that projections up to 0.4m are allowed to accommodate desirable architectural 
features; the applicant is requesting that maximum increased to 1.2 m to allow balconies to cantilever. Given 
that this variance will add positively to the architectural interest of this building and will maximize the 
development potential of the site in a manner which is sensitive to surrounding land uses and the integrity 
of the street, it is supported by staff.    

Section 11.5.2.5 ii: To increase the maximum height on Front Street from 15m to 20.5m 

It is the developer’s intention to add an additional storey to the building consequently increasing the 
number of residential units from 12 to 14 units. Each unit on the 5th floor is approximately 1,050 ft2. The 
mixed use development will provide for an efficient use of the land and active uses on the ground floor. As 
with other infill projects in the downtown, this proposal promotes a form of growth focusing on infill with a 
priority on mixed use development. Staff does not consider that the variance will have a negative impact on 
any interests of acknowledged importance, including neighbouring properties, as the form and scale of this 
development is consistent with the form and character of the downtown and adds a visually interesting 
building design.   

Section 7.4.3: To waive the requirement for Class II parking stalls.  

Under the C5 zoning, the zoning bylaw allows for 100% site coverage. The intent of this zone is to allow high 
density commercial and residential uses. Bicycle parking requirements for this type of development include: 
lockers, compounds or rooms (Class I) as well as bicycle racks located outside (Class II) the building. In this 
case, the developer proposes to increase the number of bicycle lockers inside the building to lessen the 
requirement for outdoor racks. Staff does not consider that the variance will have a negative impact on the 
neighboring properties and overall meets the intent of the bylaw.   

Support Development Permit 

The Downtown Enterprise Development Permit Area (DPA) encompasses a three block area, which is 
considered to be the “heart” of Penticton’s downtown. The City recognizes that the attractiveness of this 
area is vital in attracting tourists, pedestrians, and new development to the area. As such, development is 
expected to largely comply with what the OCP recommends with respect to siting, design, and community 
impact.  

In terms of design, the development meets many of the criteria laid out in the OCP. For example, it is felt that 
the building has a high degree of architectural value, providing interest through a variety of building 
finishes, varied roof lines, and outdoor spaces attached to each unit. Additionally, the building is adding 

- 100 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 6 of 21 

dimensional interest to the street and promoting a unique character to the building. For these reasons staff 
is recommending that Council support the Development Permit.  

Alternate Recommendations 

1. THAT Council give first reading to “OCP Amendment Bylaw No.2017-24” but deny support to 
“Development Variance Permit PL2016-7813” and Development Permit PL2016-7814. 

Attachments 

Attachment A:       Subject Property Location Map 
Attachment B : OCP Map 
Attachment C : Zoning Map 
Attachment D:   Images of Subject Property  
Attachment E: Letter of Intent 
Attachment F: Letter from Car share program 
Attachment G: Building Rendering 
Attachment H: Site Plan 
Attachment I:  DVP 
Attachment J:  OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-24 
 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 
Audrey Tanguay, MCIP 
Senior Planner 

Approvals 

Director CAO 

AH PW 

- 101 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 7 of 21 

Attachment A  -  Subject Property 

 

Figure 1: Location Map 

  

- 102 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 8 of 21 

Attachment B  -  OCP Map 

 

Figure 2: OCP Map 

 

 

    

- 103 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 9 of 21 

Attachment C  -  Zoning Map 

 

Figure 3: Zoning Map 

 

 

    

- 104 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 10 of 21 

Attachment D - Images of the Subject Property 

 

Figure 4: View from Front Street  

 

Figure 5: View from the rear lane 

- 105 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 11 of 21 

Attachment E –Letter of Rationale 

 

- 106 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 12 of 21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 107 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 13 of 21 

Attachment F –Letter for the carshare program 

 

- 108 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 14 of 21 

 

- 109 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 15 of 21 

 

  

- 110 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 16 of 21 

Attachment G – Building Rendering  

 

Figure 6: East Elevation (Front Street) 

 

Figure 7: East Elevation (Front Street) 

- 111 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 17 of 21 

 

Figure 8: East Elevation (Front Street Level) 

 

Figure 8: West Elevation (View from lane) 

- 112 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 18 of 21 

 

Figure 9: South Elevation 

 

Figure 10: North Elevation 

- 113 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 19 of 21 

Attachment H: Site Plan 

 

Figure 11: Site Plan 

  

- 114 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 20 of 21 

Attachment I: DVP

- 115 -



 
N:\CITY\ADDRESS\Front St\135\PLANNING\2016 PRJ-292\COUNCIL  Page 21 of 21 

 

- 116 -



 
 

OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-24  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-24 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Official Community Plan Bylaw 2002-20 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted an Official Community Plan Bylaw pursuant to the 
Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Official Community Bylaw 2002-20;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
 
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-24.” 
 
2. Amendment: 

 
“Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2002-20” is hereby amended as follows: 

 
2.1 Amend Section 2.1.2 The Downtown and Urban Villages to include “A five storey high density 

format would be an option in the Downtown Commercial (DC) designated area of 135 Front 
Street.” 

 
 

 
READ A FIRST time this 21 day of March, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 4 day of April, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

    

Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 24 of March, 2017 and the 29 of March, 2017 in the Penticton 
newspapers, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter. 

 
 
 
       
Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 

 
 

       
Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

- 117 -



 
 

1 0 2 	 E L L I S 	 S T 	 	 	 P E N T I C T O N , 	 B C 	 	 	 V 2 A 	 4 L 5 	
Ph:	778-476-3111			Email:	admin@penticton.org			Web:	www.penticton.org	

 

     
	 	 	 	 									“ a 	 c a t a l y s t 	 i n 	 t h e 	 c o m m u n i t y ” 	
	
	
March	20,	2017	
	
 
Mayor	and	Council	
City	of	Penticton	
	
Re:	Schoenne	Homes	development	at	135	Front	Street	and	the	introduction	of	Car	Share	
	
The	Penticton	&	Wine	Country	Chamber	of	Commerce	supports	Schoenne	Homes’	application	
for	development	at	135	Front	Street,	as	well	as	the	introduction	of	the	first	Car	Share	program	
coming	to	Penticton	–	“Ogo-share.”	
	
We	believe	that	the	idea	that	Bruce	is	putting	forward	is	creative	and	innovative,	and	this	
project	will	support	a	robust	and	vibrant	downtown.		
	
	
Yours	very	truly,	

	
Neil	Wyper,	President	
Penticton	&	Wine	Country	Chamber	of	Commerce	
	

- 118 -


	1 - Resolutions - 2017-14
	1a - Report - Bylaw Amendments (Vacation Rentals)
	1b - 2017-14 Zoning Amendment - Vacation Rental
	1c - Correspondence - Zoning 2017-14 Vacation Rental
	2 - Resolutions - 2017-19
	2a - Report - Zoning Ontario St
	2b- 2017-19 Zoning Amendment - Ontario Street
	2c - Shedule A (Bylaw 2017-19)
	Slide Number 1

	3 - Resolutions - 2017-20
	3a - Report - Zoning Revelstoke
	3b -  2017-20 Zoning Amendment - Revelstoke Railway St
	3c - Schedule A (Bylaw 2017-20)
	Slide Number 1

	4 - Resolutions - 2017-21
	4a -  Report Zoning Westminster Maple
	4b - 2017-21 Zoning Amendment - Westminster Maple
	4c- Schedule A (Bylaw 2017-21)
	Slide Number 1

	4d - Correspondence - Zoning 2017-21
	5 - Resolutions - 2017-22
	5a - Report Zoning Brunswick Street
	5b- 2017-22 Zoning Amendment - Brunswick Street
	5c - Schedule A (Bylaw 2017-22)
	Slide Number 1

	6 - Resolutions - 2017-23
	6a - Report Zoning Winnipeg Wade
	6b - 2017-23 Zoning Amendment - Winnipeg Wade
	7 - Resolutions - 2017-24
	7a - Report - OCP Front Street
	7b - 2017-24 OCP Amendment - 135 Front Street
	7c - Correspondence - OCP 2017-24 - Schoenne Letter of Support



